
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM - NORTHSIDE CIVIC CENTRE 

 
ON MONDAY 19 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 2.00 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
MONDAY 19 FEBRUARY 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of meeting held on  15th January 2018   

 
3 - 6 

2   Minutes of meeting held on 24th January 2018   
 

7 - 8 

3   Questions to the Area Manager   
 

9 - 18 

4   Area Matters   
 

 

a   Report on Grass Cutting contract and Tree cutting programme  
( Report herewith) Fergus O’Carroll, Noel Mc Evoy 
 

19 - 36 

b   Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership  
( Report herewith) 
 

37 - 42 

c   Roads Maintenance Works Programme 2018  
( Report herewith) 
 

43 - 44 

d   Roads and Traffic Works Programme 2018  
( Report herewith) 
 

45 - 46 

e   Parks Works Programme 2018  
( Report herewith) 
 

47 - 48 

f   Housing Supply and Delivery Report  
( Report herewith) Aidan Fitzsimons, Derek Farrell 
 

49 - 62 

g   Community Grants 2018  
( Report herewith) Aileen Doyle 
 

63 - 68 

h   Naming & Numbering Proposal , Phase 2C Parkside, Belmayne, Dublin 13  
( Report herewith) Elaine Mulvenny 
 

69 - 72 

5   Items for following meetings   
 

 

6   Roads and Traffic Matters    



 

 
a   Minutes of TAG Meeting held on 18th February 2018  

( Report herewith)  
 

73 - 76 

7   Motions   
 

 

a   Motion in the name of Ardmhéara Micheál MacDonncha  
This Area Committee acknowledges that DCC Departmental work which is the 
focus of the taking in charge (T.I.C.) process would benefit from the allocation of 
additional resources, with a very particular focus and purpose to advance the 
T.I.C of the Belmayne and Clongriffin areas, and requests that these resources be 
made available. 
 
This is required given the enormous scale of both areas and difficulties 
experienced for residents while the area and building was subject to the effects of 
the recession and halt on the pace of building work, which consequently affected 
the completion of building and infrastructure and  impacted at another  level on 
developers’ readiness to either prepare or make formal application to DCC to 
have areas taken in Charge. 
 
All of the above would be in line with the developers’ formal applications to DCC 
for T.I.C  and efforts to bring the process to fruition, readiness to make the initial 
application and in the current period to continue the initial work towards T.I.C   
which has begun in sections of both Belmayne and Clongriffin.  

 

 

b   Motion in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland, Councillor Michael 
O'Brien,  Councillor John Lyons and Councillor Tom Brabazon  
That the North Central Area Committee recognised the significant public realm 
enhancement achieved by the greening project in Edenmore. The North Central 
Area Committee also recognises the work and support of the local Edenmore 
Residents' Association for this project. Recognising that additional funding is 
required to finish out this project, the North Central Area Committee seeks that the 
un-allocated balance of €66,250 in the North Central Area discretionary fund be 
allocated to the completion this project and that any remaining funding required be 
negotiated from DCC central funds.   

 
 

 

c   Motion in the name of Councillor John Lyons  
This Area Committee calls for an independent valuation of the 17 hectare Oscar 
Traynor site at Coolock Lane, known locally as the Lawrence Lands. 

 

 

d   Motion in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney  
That this Committee agrees that full consideration be given to accommodating the 
boxing facility of Bay City Boxing Club which currently trains out of the community 
centre in Greendale Kilbarrack in the newly refurbished community/neighbourhood 
centre that is planned and that such boxing facility should include changing rooms 
and shower facilities and that the manager make a statement on the matter.   

 

 

e   Motion in the name of Councillor Larry O'Toole  
That this committee instruct the manager to contact the Dublin Bike Scheme 
requesting a review of the proposed extension of the scheme to include North 
Strand and Fairview. 

 

 

f   Motion in the name of Councillor Naoise O'Muirí  
That the Area Office would undertake an accelerated consultation exercise with 
local residents in relation to plans to implement welcome improvements to the 
area between the Malahide Road and the entrance to St Vincents GAA Club. 

 

 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON MONDAY 15 JANUARY 2018 

 
 

 
 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on 18th December 2017 

 
Order: Noted 
 

 

2   Questions to the Area Manager 
 
Order: Noted 
 

 

3   Area Matters   
 

 

a   Dublin Airport Authority  
Order: Noted. Circulate information regarding Community Trust Fund 
 

 

b   PACE Presentation  
Order: Noted. PACE to invite Committee members to visit workshop 
 

 

c   Coolock Library  
Order: Noted 
 

 

d   Housing Supply and Delivery Report  
Order: Noted 
 

 

e   Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership  
Order: Noted 
 

 

f   Discretionary Update  
Order: Report agreed. 
 

 

g   Report on Grass cutting contract and tree care programme  
Order: Defer to February North Central Area Committee meeting. 
Representative to attend 
 

 

h   Strategic Housing Development Proposal  
Order: Special Area Committee requested to record Councillors 
comments. Committee requested copy of Presentation . 
 

 

i   Proposed disposal of a plot of land to the rear of 20 Croydon Green, 
Marino, Dublin 3 to Josephine O'Connell and Patrick Ryan.  
Order: Agreed. Recommend to City Council 
 

 

Page 3



2 
 

4   Items for following meetings 
 
Order: No items listed 
 
It was agreed 
March NCA meeting scheduled for 19TH March 2018 be rescheduled to 12th 
March 2018 
December NCA meeting scheduled for 17th December 2018 be rescheduled to 
10th December 2018 
 

 

5   Roads and Traffic Matters   
 

 

a   Minutes from the Traffic Advisory Group  Meeting  
Order: Noted 
 

 

6   Motions   
 

 

a   Motion in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones  
Order: Report to Councillor 
 

 

b   Motion in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney  
Order: North Central Area to submit Motion to Irish Rail 
 

 

 
Councillor Ciaran O'Moore 
Chairperson 
Monday 15 January 2018 
 
 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Ciaran O'Moore 
(Chairperson) 

  

Tom Brabazon Sean Paul Mahon Edel Moran 
Deirdre Heney Ardmhéara Micheal Mac Donncha Naoise O'Muiri 
Michael O'Brien Damian O'Farrell Larry O'Toole 
Paddy Bourke Declan Flanagan Alison Gilliland 
 
Officers 
Dave Dinnigan, Area Manager 
Elaine Mulvenny, Assistant Area Manager 
Deirdre Murphy, Administrative Officer 
Richard Cleary, Public Domain Officer 
Dympna Mc Cann, Senior Staff Officer 
Catherine Brophy Walshe, ELO 
Ollie Douglas, Chief Executives Department 
Bryan Ward, Planning 
Averil Feeney, Planning 
Derek Farrell, Area Housing Manager 
Aidan Fitzsimons, Area Housing Manager 
Yvonne Kirwan, Staff Officer 
Samantha Rooney, Assistant Staff Officer 
 
 
 

  

Page 4



3 
 

   
 
Apologies:    
Jane Horgan-Jones John Lyons  
 
Non-Members:    
   
Elaine Mahoney, Mahoney Architects 
Dearbhla Mc Clean, DCC 
Siobhan O’Donnell, DAA 
Maura Cassidy, DAA 
Maggie Clune, PACE 
Lisa Cuthbert,PACE 
 
 

Page 5





1 
 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018 

 
 

 
 
1   St Pauls Strategic Housing Development 

 
Order: Noted. Councillors requested to have their objections to this planning 
application recorded and were advised that any observations or recommendations 
cannot be taken into account in the determination of the planning application 
unless formally submitted in accordance with the provisions of the Planning and 
Development Regulations. 
 

 

 
Councillor Ciaran O'Moore 
Chairperson 
Wednesday 24 January 2018 
 
 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
Ciaran O'Moore (Chairperson)   
Tom Brabazon John Lyons Ardmhéara Micheal Mac Donncha 
Naoise O'Muiri Michael O'Brien Damian O'Farrell 
Larry O'Toole Paddy Bourke Declan Flanagan 
Alison Gilliland Sean Paul Mahon Deirdre Heney 
Edel Moran 
 
Officers   
   
Dave Dinnigan, Area Manager 
Bryan Ward, Senior Planner 
Avril Feeney, Administrative Officer 
Dympna Mc Cann, Senior Staff Officer 
Edel  Joyce, Assistant Staff Officer 
Sam Rooney,Assistant Staff Officer 
 
 
Apologies:    
Jane Horgan-Jones   
 
Non-Members:    
   

Page 7



2 
 

Melissa O’Callaghan,  
Georgina Moore, 
Jane O’Connor 
Frank Pelly PP Raheny Heritage Society  
Roderick Maguire 
Emer Burke 
Kay Lonergan 
Ailish Connors 
Jone Scully 
Marguerite O’Brien 
Angela O’Doherty 
Nora Byrne 
Brian Heapes 
Michael O’Brien 
Donal Mc Carthy 
 

Page 8



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

19
th

 February, 2018 
 
Q.1 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).”  
 
Q.2 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).”  
 
Q.3 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).”  
 
  
Q.4 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to (details supplied).” 
 
Q.5 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.6 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.7 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to respond to this housing maintenance issue (details supplied).” 

  
Q.8 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to respond to this housing issue (details supplied).” 
 
Q.9 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to have this matter dealt with without delay (details supplied).” 
Q.10 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.11 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.12 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.13 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.14 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Page 9



  
Q.15 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.16 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.17 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.18 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to give an update on this housing application (details supplied).” 
  
Q.19 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 

  
Q.20 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.21 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.22 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.23 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.24 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.25 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.26 Question in the name of Councillor John Lyons 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.27 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.28 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to respond to this matter (details supplied).” 
  
Q.29 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to give an update on the following (details supplied).” 

Page 10



 
Q.30 Question in the name of Councillor Alison Gilliland 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to (details supplied).” 
 
Q.31 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  
Q.32 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  
 
Q.33 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 
Q.34 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 
Q.35 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 
  
Q.36 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 
  
Q.37 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  
Q.38 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

 “To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 
Q.39 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.40 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.41 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.42 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.43 Question in the name of Councillor Ciarán O’Moore 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Page 11



  
Q.44 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the Manager to refer to problem with air pollution coming from premises as per 
 (details supplied) as a result of reported unlawful burning of waste and say if he can arrange 
 to have the matter investigated with a view to resolving the problem.” 
 
Q.45 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 

 “To ask the Manager to refer to problem location as per (details supplied) and say if he can 
 arrange to have the area properly finished off with concrete as was the case before necessary 
 repair works were carried out last year.” 
  
Q.46 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the manager to refer to housing list case as per (details supplied) and confirm their 
 place on the Housing List.” 
 
Q.47 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the Manager to refer to request from (details supplied) to acquire the fee simple of 
 the premises and say 

(1)  why the matter it taking so long to process  
(2)  give details of what exactly is required of the householder/owner to bring matters to a 

conclusion in this regard, to include outlay on valuations etc 
(3) what the fee of acquiring same from the City Council is, and 
(4) if he will make a detailed statement on the matter.”  

  
Q.48 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the Manager to refer to the problem resulting from the location of trees as per 
 (details supplied), planted next to boundary wall which are damaging the property at details 
 attached and say at this stage  
 

(a) if he can arrange to contact resident directly as was promised  in response to my December 
2016 Area Committee Question  and come to an agreement as to what can be done to 
resolve the serious problem here, 

(b) if he can at least acknowledge that a problem exists, not with the health of the trees as was 
referred to in the reply to my last question, but the actual location of same 

(c) if permission can be given to resident to hire a tree surgeon to prune the problematic trees in 
question 
 

Q.49 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to respond to this request (details supplied).” 
 
Q.50 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to respond to this query (details supplied).” 

  
Q.51 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“Can the street lights in (detail supplied) be activated please, there are a lot of children on 
the road and it’s a health and safety issue 

      Also, why is there no footpaths beside the road, how was planning given for        
       this design.” 

  
Q.52 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 

Page 12



 
Q.53 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.54 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.55 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  

Q.56 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.57 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 

  
Q.58 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.59 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.60 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.61 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.62 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.63 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.64 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

  
Q.65 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.66 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.67 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

Page 13



“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.68 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
 
Q.69 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.70 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

  
Q.71 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.72 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.73 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.74 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.75 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.76 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.77 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.78 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 

Q.79 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.80 Question in the name of Councillor Edel Moran 
 

“To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.81 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
 

Page 14



  
Q.82 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
 
  
Q.83 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
 
Q.84 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
 
Q.85 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
  
Q.86 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
 
Q.87 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
  
Q.88 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
 
Q.89 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
  
Q.90 Question in the name of Councillor Naoise O’Muirí 
 
 “Can the Manager answer the following (details supplied).” 
  
Q.91 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager the following (details supplied).” 
  
Q.92 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager the following (details supplied).” 

  
Q.93 Question in the name of Councillor Seán Paul Mahon 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager the following (details supplied).” 
 
Q.94 Question in the name of Councillor Michael O’Brien 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
Q.95 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
 
  

Page 15



 
Q.96 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.97 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 
  
Q.98 Question in the name of Councillor Declan Flanagan 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).” 

  
Q.99 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the Manager please refer to my question 33 at November Area Committee and say if he 
 will agree to revisit the issue of the concerns of residents who request the removal of a tree at 
 location as per (details supplied) and if he will arrange to have an official contact my 
 constituent directly in order to appraise the City Council of matter; and can he specifically 
 comment on the tree close to details attached that was removed last year; 
 
Q.100 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the manager please refer to dangerous manhole cover at location as per (details 
 supplied) and say if he can repair/replace same as it poses a serious hazard to pedestrians.” 
   
Q.101 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the manager please refer to area at location as per (details supplied) and explain why 
 footpath at same was widened as local resident believes that it has made the junction less 
 safe for motorists.” 
 
Q.102 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “Can the manager please refer to tree at location as per (details supplied) and say when 
 same can be pruned as was requested last year.” 
 
 Details: Tree located between house numbers 28 and 29 Pinebrook Avenue, Artane, D5 
 it’s a huge tree and is lifting up the concrete as a result of root growth. 
 
Q.103 Question in the name of Councillor Deirdre Heney 
 
 “To ask the manager to refer to location as per (details supplied) and say when same will be 
 re-concreted following repair works last year.” 

  
Q.104 Question in the name of Councillor Larry O’Toole 
 
 “To ask the Area Manager to clarify the following (details supplied).” 
 
Q.105 Question in the name of Councillor Jane Horgan Jones 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 

 
Q.106 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  
 
 

Page 16



Q.107 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  

Q.108 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
 
Q.109 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  

Q.110 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  

 
Q.111 Question in the name of Councillor Damian O’Farrell 
 

“To ask the Area Manager the following question [details supplied].” 
  

Page 17





Verge Maintenance CONTRACT NO. 4  
 
NORTH CENTRAL AREA 
 

No. Road/Street  
 

 All Saints Road  

 All Saints Drive  

 All Saints Park  

 All Saints Grove  

 Alfie Byrne Road  

 Annadale Crescent  

 Annadale Drive  

 Ardara Avenue  

 Ardlea Road  

 Ashcroft  

 Aulden Grange 
Avondale (small open spaces) 

 

 Ayrfield Avenue  

 Ayrfield Court  

 Ayrfield Drive  

 Ayrfield Grove  

 Ayrfield Park  

 Ayrfield Road  

 Beaumont Grove  

 Beaumont Road  

 Beaumont Woods  

 Beechbrook Grove  

 Beechlawn Avenue  

 Beechlawn Close  

 Beechlawn Green  

 Beechlawn Grove  

 Beech Park Grove  

 Beresford Estate  

 Belcamp Crescent  

 Belcamp Gardens  

 Belcamp Green  

 Belcamp Grove  

 Belmont Park  

 Bettyglen Open Space  

 Blackheath Park  

 Blackheath Court  

 Blunden Drive  

 Brian Road  

 Brookville Park (Malahide Rd)  

 Brookwood Rise  

 Brookwood Meadows  

 Brookwood Avenue  

Page 19



 Brookwood Crescent 
Brookwood Glen 

 

 Brookwood Lawns  

 Brookwood Heights  

 Brookwood Park  

 Calderwood Road  

 Carndonagh Drive  

 Carndonagh Lawn  

 Carndonagh Park  

 Carndonagh Road  

 Carraroe Avenue  

 Casino Park  

 Castle Avenue  

 Castle Grove  

 Castle Road  

 Castletimon Avenue (Estate)  

 Castleview, Artane  

 Castlecourt  

 Cedar Park  

 Cedar Walk  

 Celtic Park Road  

 Chanel Avenue  

 Chanel Road  

 Charlemont Estate  

 Chelsea Gardens  

 Cherrymount Estate  

 Cherrymount Grove Estate  

 Cill Eanna  

 Clonshaugh Park  

 Coleen Avenue  

 Clarehall Road (Both Sides)  

 Clonmellon Grove  

 Clonrosse Court  

 Clonrosse Drive  

 Clonrosse Park  

 Clonshaugh Avenue  

 Clonshaugh Close  

 Clonshaugh Crescent  

 Clonshaugh Drive  

 Clonshaugh Glen  

 Clonshaugh Green  

 Clonshaugh Heights  

 Clonshaugh Lawn  

 Clonshaugh Meadow  

 Clonshaugh Road  

 Clonshaugh Walk  

 Clontarf Road  
  

Page 20



No. Road/Street  
 

 Collins Avenue  

 Collins Park  

 Collinswood  

 Conquer Hill Road  

 Coolatree Park  

 Coolatree Road  

 Cooleen Avenue  

 Coolgariff Road  

 Coolgreena Road  

 Coolock Lane  

 Coolrua Drive  

 Copeland Avenue  

 Copeland Grove  

 Curracloe Avenue  

 Curracloe Drive 
Cloisters off Grace Park Road 

 

 Darndale Estate  

 Dollymount Park  

 Donaghmede Avenue  

 Donaghmede Drive  

 Donaghmede Park  

 Donaghmede Road  

 Donnycarney Road  

 Dromawling Road  

 Dromeen Avenue  

 Dromnanane Park  

 Dromnanane Road  

 Dunree Park  

 Elm Mount Avenue  

 Elm Mount Close  

 Elm Mount Court  

 Elm Mount Crescent  

 Elm Mount Drive  

 Elm Mount Grove  

 Elm Mount Heights  

 Elm Mount Lawn  

 Elm Mount Park  

 Elm Mount Rise  

 Elm Mount Road  

 Elm Mount View  

 Elm Road  

 Elmfield Avenue  

 Elmfield Court  

 Elmfield Drive  

  

Page 21



No. Road/Street  
 

 Elmfield Green  

 Elmfield Grove  

 Elmfield Lawn  

 Elmfield Park  

 Elmfield Rise  

 Elmfield Vale  

 Elmfield Walk  

 Elmfield Way  

 Elton Court  

 Elton Drive  

 Elton Park  

 Elton Walk  

 Ennel Avenue  

 Ennel Drive  

 Ennel Park  

 Ferrycarrig Drive  

 Ferrycarrig Green  

 Ferrycarrig Park  

 Fox’s Lane  

 Foxfield Avenue  

 Foxfield Crescent  

 Foxfield Drive  

 Foxfield Green  

 Foxfield Grove  

 Foxfield Heights  

 Foxfield Lawn  

 Foxfield Park  

 Foxfield Road  

 Foxfield Saint John  

 Foxhill Avenue  

 Foxhill Close  

 Foxhill Court  

 Foxhill Crescent  

 Foxhill Drive  

 Foxhill Green  

 Foxhill Grove  

 Foxhill Lawn  

 Foxhill Park  

 Foxhill Way  

 Glenfarne Road  

 Glenwood Road  

 Glin Crescent  

 Glin Grove  
  

Page 22



No. Road/Street  
 

 Glin Park  

 Glin Road  

 Grace Park Road  

 Gracefield Avenue  

 Gracefield Grove  

 Gracefield Road  

 Grace Park Terrace  

 Grange Abbey Crescent  

 Grange Abbey Drive  

 Grange Abbey Grove  

 Grange Road  

 Grangemore Avenue  

 Grangemore Park  

 Grangemore Rise  

 Grangemore Road  

 Gratton Lodge  

 Greencastle Road  

 Greendale Road  

 Greenwood Estate  

 Griffith Avenue  

 Griffith Court  

 Griffith Downs  

 Griffith Walk  

 Grosvenor Court  

 Hampton Court 
Harmonstown Road 

 

 Hazelwood Drive  

 Hazelwood Grove  

 Hazelwood Park  

 High Park  

 Hole in the Wall Road  

 Hollybrook Grove  

 Hollybrook Park  

 Holywell Avenue  

 Holywell Crescent  

 Holywell Road  

 Howth Road  

 Howth View Park 
Howth Junction Cottages on  
Tonglegee Road 

 

 Iveragh Road  

 Ivermore Close  

 James Larkin Road  

 Kilbarrack Gardens  

 Kilbarrack Grove  

No. Road/Street  

Page 23



 

 Kilbarrack Road  

 Kilbarrack Avenue  

 Kilfenora Drive  

 Killary Grove  

 Kilester Park  

 Kilester Road  

 Kilmore Avenue  

 Kilmore Close  

 Kilmore Crescent  

 Kilmore Drive  

 Kilmore Road  

 Kilmoroney Close  

 Kincora Avenue  

 Kincora Court  

 Kincora Drive  

 Kincora Grove  

 Kincora Road  

 La Vista Avenue  

 Laracor Gardens  

 Laragh Close  

 Laragh Grove  

 Lawrence Grove (off Howth 
Road) 

 

 Lein Park  

 Lein Road 
Lein Gardens 

 

 Lentisk Lawn  

 Limewood Avenue  

 Limewood Park  

 Limewood Road  

 Lorcan Avenue  

 Lorcan Crescent  

 Lorcan Grove  

 Lorcan Park  

 Lough Derg Road  

 Malahide Road  

 Malahide Road New Extension 
from Hilton Hotel 
Allow price 

 

 Manor Drive  

 Maryfield Crescent  

 Maryfield Drive  

 Mask Avenue  

 Mask Crescent  

 Mask Drive  

 Mask Green  

 Mask Road  

Page 24



 Maywood Avenue  

 McAuley Avenue  

 McAuley Drive  

 McAuley Park  

 McAuley Road  

 Nurney Grove  

 Millbrook Avenue  

 Millbrook Road  

 Milwood Park  

 Moatfield Avenue  

 Moatfield Park  

 Moatfield Road  

 Moatview Avenue  

 Moatview Court  

 Moatview Drive  

 Moatview Gardens  

 Mount Prospect Avenue  

 Mount Prospect Lawns  

 Mount Prospect 
Park/Woodside 

 

 Newbrook Avenue  

 Newbrook Road  

 Newbury Avenue  

 Newbury Drive  

 Newbury Grove  

 Newbury Heights  

 Newbury Lawns  

 Newbury Park  

 Newgrange Road  

 Newgrove Estate 
Newton Grove 

 

 Newtown Drive  

 Nurney Lawn  

 N32 From Bewleys hotel to 
Baldoyle Including 
Roundabout, shurberry 4 x 
quarters 

 

 Oakley Park  

 Orchard Road  

 Oscar Traynor Road  

 Park Lawn 
Phillipsburg Ave 2 open spaces 

 

 Raheny Road  

 Raheny Park  

 Rathmore Park  

 Rathvale Drive  

 Redmonds Court, Kilbarrack  

 Ribh Avenue  

Page 25



 Ribh Road  

 Rosapenna Drive  

 Rosemount Avenue  

 Tulip Court  

 Santry Close  

 Saint Aidan’s Park  

 Seacourt  

 Seafield Avenue  

 St. Anne’s Avenue  

 St. Anne’s Drive  

 St. Anne’s Park  

 St. Anne’s Terrace  

 St. Assam’s Avenue  

 St. Assam’s Drive  

 St. Assam’s Parade  

 St. Assam’s Park  

 St. Assam’s Road  

 St. Brendan’s Avenue  

 St. Brendan’s Park  

 St. Brendan’s Terrace  

 St. Brigid’s Road  

 St. David’s Park  

 St. David’s Wood  

 St. Gabriel’s  

 St. Gabriel’s Court  

 St. Lawrence Road 
St Lawrence Park 

 

 St. Margaret’s Avenue  

 St. John’s Court  

 Seafield Grove  

 Seafield Road East  

 Seapark Drive  

 Seapark Road  

 Seven Oaks  

 Shantalla Drive  

 Shantalla Road  

 Shantalla Park  

 Skelly’s Lane  

 Slademore Avenue  

 Slademore Close  

 Slademore Court  

 Slademore Drive  

 Springdale Road  

 Station Road  

 Streamville Road  

 St. Brigid’s Estate  

 Swift’s Grove  

 Swords Road  

Page 26



 Sybil Hill Road  

 Tara Lawn  

 The Beeches  

 The Meadows  

 The Orchard  

 Thorndale Drive  

 Thorndale Grove  

 Thornville Park  

 Thornville Avenue  

 Tonlegee Avenue  

 Tonlegee Drive  

 Tonlegee Road  

 Tranquility Grove  

 Tuscany Downs  

 Temple View Avenue  

 Temple View Close  

 Temple View Copse  

 Temple View Court  

 Temple View Crescent  

 Temple View Drive  

 Temple View Green  

 Temple View Grove  

 Temple View Lawn  

 Temple View Park  

 Temple View Place  

 Temple View Downs  

 Temple View Rise  

 Temple View Row  

 Temple View Square  

 Temple View Vale  

 Temple View Walk  

 Temple View Way  

 The Stiles Road 
The Orchard, Greenwood Est 

 

 Vernon Avenue  

 Vernon Drive  

 Vernon Grove  

 Vernon Rise  

 Watermill Drive  

 Watermill Road 
Westpark Est 

 

 Woodbine Road  

 Woodlawn Avenue / Estate  

 Woodview Close  

 Woodview Park  

 Wyteleaf Grove 
Whitethorn Road (off Skellys 
Lane) 

 

Page 27



 

CONTRACT NO. 4  North Central 
 

Landscape Maintenance Contract of 60 sites/locations 
North Side of the City 
 
4.1 Ayrefield Court Senior Citizen Flat Raheny 
4.2 Beresford Estate of Griffith Ave ,Dublin 9 
4.3 Brian Boru Street Raheny 
4.4 Bunratty Road Flat Complex 
4.5 Cherrymount Crescent Senior Citizen Residence, Donnycarney 
4.6 Cromcastle Courts Flats 
4.7 Darndale Open Spaces 
4.8 Donaghmeade Park, Donaghmeade 
4.9 Grange Abbey Open Spaces, Donaghmeade 
4.10 Holywell Open Space and adjacent Open Spaces , Kilbarrack 
4.11 Moateview open Spaces Coolock 
4.12 Newgrove estate / Trinity Pitches /open Spaces 
4.13 Open Spaces at Kilmore Road / Oscar Traynor Road / Barryscourt Road 
4.14 Open Spaces at Oscar Traynor Road / BeechlawnAve / Coolock Drive 
4.15 Open Spaces Oscar Traynor Road / Coolock Village open Spaces 
4.16 Oscar Traynor Road 
4.17 St Davids Estate, Malahide Road, Artane 
4.18 St Gabriels Court Flats Clontarf 
4.19 St. Lukes Court& Cromcastle Close 
4.20 Swords Road / Oak Park Ave Open Spaces, Santry 
4.21 Thorndale Open Spaces, Malahide Road, Artane 
4.22 Hazelwood Court 
4.23 The Cloysters Estate 
4.24 Streamville Close 
4.25 Newbury Woods 
4.26 Oscar Traynor  Roundabout to Spar  provisional 
4.27 Redmond Court , Kilbarrack 
4.28 All Saints Park 
4.29 All Saints Road (Part 1) 
4.30 All Saints Road (Part 2) 
4.31 All Saints Road  / Drive 
4.32 Bettyglen Village 
4.33 Blackheath Court o/ space 
4.34 Castle Court-open space 
4.35 Chelsea Gardens open space and Shrubs 
4.36 Coquer Hill  a+b shrubs ++shrubs 
4.37 Dollymont Rise  open space 
4.38 Furry Park Road a,b and c open space + 2 Roundabouts 
4.39 Grosveror Court  / open space + shrubs 
4.40 Hampton Court / open space + hardsurface 
4.41 Kincora Court / open space and Shrubs 
4.42 Kincora Grove / open space and shrubs 
4.43 Kincora Road open space 

Page 28



4.44 Lawerence Grove open space and shrubs 
4.45 Mount Prospect Avenue / Lawn 
4.46 Mount Prospect   Park 
4.47 Seafield Downs open space + shrubs 
4.48 Seafield Grove 
4.49 Sybil Hill Road  (a) open space linear 
4.50 Sybil Hill Road  (b) open space linear 
4.51 The Meadows (a) &  ( b )  open space + shrubs 
4.52 The Oaks open space and Shrubs 
4.53 Vernon Heath open space and Shrubs 
4.54 Vernon Rise (a) & (b)  open space and woodland 
4.55 Watermill Lawn / Road linear open space 
4.56 Clanmoyle Road off Collins Ave 
4.57 St Annes Terace 
4.58 Seacourt@Junction Ave East&St Gabriels Road 
4.59 Maisonettes at Clancarty Road / Malahide Road junction open space 
4.60 Clanmaurice Court 
 
 

 

Page 29





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Parks & Landscape Services Division, 

Environment & Culture Department, 

Civic Offices, Wood Quay, Dublin 8, Ireland  

 
Rannóg na bPáirceanna agus Seirbhísí Tírdhreacha, 

An Roinn Comhshaoil agus Cultúir, 

Oifigí na Cathrach, An Ché Adhmaid, Baile Átha Cliath 8, Éire 

T. 01 222 3401  F. 01 222 2668  

 
4th January 2018       

 
Report for N.C.A Committee 
 
 
 Re: Items raised at North Central Area Committee Meeting held on 23

rd
 October, 2017. 

 
 

  

Report on Grass Contractors 
 

It is the intention of DCC Parks and landscape Services where possible to engage Grass cutting 
contractors to cut  grass verges small open spaces and incidental spaces within the City.  Two 
contractors were successful in winning the contract which lasts for 4 years, they are as follows 
Sap landscapes Ltd., and Redlough landscaping Ltd. 
The grass cutting contract requires that grass should be cut once every two weeks weather permitting 
all year around. The contract allows for incidental litter picking to facilitate mowing. 

 

 
Trees NCA  

 
The 2017 Tree Care Maintenance Programme for the North Central Area was allocated a Budget 
€110,000.00. Regarding costs pertaining to Storm Ophelia all works were done In house by Council 
Parks Staff.  Damage to trees in the NCA were relatively minor compared to other areas of the city, 
estimated labour costs for NCA was in the region of €5,000.00  

 
 

 
Noêl McEvoy 
Executive Parks Superintendent. 
 
 
 

Page 31





 
 
 

Parks & Landscape Services Division, 

Environment & Culture Department, 

Civic Offices, Wood Quay, Dublin 8, Ireland  

 
Rannóg na bPáirceanna agus Seirbhísí Tírdhreacha, 

An Roinn Comhshaoil agus Cultúir, 

Oifigí na Cathrach, An Ché Adhmaid, Baile Átha Cliath 8, Éire 

T. 01 222 3401  F. 01 222 2668  

 
 

 
Supplemental information to the report on Grass Cutting contracts provided to January’s Area 

Committee meeting. 

 
The current grass maintenance contract is in its second year of four and the experience of the Parks 
and Landscape Service to date has been primarily positive.  The Contract Supervisor works closely 
with both contractors with regard to performance standards and certification of payments.   
 
Whether the grass cutting is carried out by contract or by direct labour the main barriers to service 
delivery are wet weather and incidents of illegal dumping.  During wet periods it is not possible to cut 
the grass as the grass maintenance machinery will damage the open space.  When the grass is next 
cut it will be longer and can lead to grass being trailed onto footpaths and roads. However the 
contract requires the site to be left in a neat and tidy condition.  Any failings by the contractor in this 
regard are brought to their attention to rectify in a timely manner as required by the contract.  Illegal 
dumping reported by the public or found on contract areas by the contractor are investigated by the 
Contract Supervisor and arrangements made to have the materials removed by direct labour or the 
contractor depending on the nature and volume of the dumped materials.   
 
Listed below are the relevant sections of the contract with regard to performance standards, quality 
control, penalties and contract termination.. 
 
            Successful Contractors: 

 
Two contractors were successful in winning the Grass cutting contract for 4 years 2017-2020 
inclusive; Sap Landscapes Ltd., and Redlough Landscaping Ltd. 
 
            Litter removal: 
 
Grass Maintenance: Contract areas 1,2,3,4 and 5 
    
  Provision should be made in the contract price for the removal and disposal of all  litter from 

site during each site visit at the contractor’s own expense. The interval between site visits 
must not be greater than 14 calendar days. The contractor should become familiar with the 
areas where litter is likely to arise and tender appropriate (Discuss with Parks District Contract 
Supervisor for each Area see 1.1.2). 

 
The grass cutting contract requires that grass should be cut once every two weeks weather permitting 
all year around. The contract requires the removal of incidental litter during each site visit and prior to 
mowing to prevent shredding. 

 
             Performance Standards: 

 
Grass Maintenance: Contract areas 1,2,3,4, and 5 
 
 During the grass growing season the maximum time between cuttings should not exceed two 

weeks (14 calendar days). Since it is not possible to accurately predict the precise 

Page 33



number of mowing’s which may be required in any given growing season a minimum 
of 26 mowing’s per growing season should be priced for.  Should the number of mowing 
required be greater or lesser there will be no adjustment in payment.   

 
  
 Maximum height of growth 

 after which grass is to be cut- 60mm 
   
  Minimum cutting height -    25 mm 
  
 
1.6.2 Grass cutting should be undertaken with rotary, cylinder or flail mowers. All safety guards 

must be in working order at all times.  All grass cutting machinery must be of the rear 
discharge type (side discharge mowers are not permitted to be used). 

 
1.6.3 In the event of grass mowing being deposited on footpaths, roadways, the contractor shall 

collect the mowing’s and leave the area in a neat and tidy condition. Provision should be 
made in the contract price for this work. 

 
1.6.4 The Contractor is to avoid carrying clay, soil, grass cuttings or other such accumulations from 

grass or cultivated soil to hard surfaces, whether within a site or out onto the public highway.  
Wheels and all parts of plant which may give rise to this problem are to be cleaned before 
going off site.  Where such accumulation is deposited on hard surfaces these shall be blown 
or swept and removed from the hard surface at the contractors own expense. 

 
1.6.5 At all times the grass must be mown to a proper standard with no track marks or misses in the 

cutting, scalping of the turf or other such marks to be left in the grass area. Where such 
standards are not met, then the contractor must rectify the area to the correct standards within 
48 hours (2 working days) of receiving the complaint.  

 
1.6.6 All Machine operators shall have received prior training in the safe use and operation of the 

particular machine being operated. 
 
1.6.7 The Contractor shall instruct staff specifically on the requirement to avoid damage to trees.  

All trees damage by mowing equipment shall be replaced to the satisfaction of the City Parks 
Superintendent at no additional cost to Dublin City Council. 

 
1.6.8 Dublin City Council reserves the right to plant additional trees on the areas being maintained 

during the contract period. 
 
1.6.9 During the course of the tender a decision may be take to maintain specified areas of 

grassland open space as meadow to promote nature conservation. 
 
1.6.10   Provision should be made in the contract price for the removal and disposal of all  leaf 

litter from grass surfaces during the autumn /early winter during each site visit at the 
contractor’s own expense. The contractor should become familiar with the areas where leaf 
litter is likely to arise and tender appropriately (Before submitting a contract price it is 
recommended that the work be discussed with the Parks District Contract Supervisor 
 

             Quality Control:  
 
Parks and landscape services have allocated one full-time Contract Supervisor for the City to ensure 
the conditions of the contract are adhered to.  The Contract Supervisor engages with the contractors 
on an on-going basis with regard to performance and certifying payments and acts as a point of 
contact with regard to illegal dumping on open spaces which might impede the contractor in the 
appropriate maintenance of an area.  
 
The contract does not allow for the collection of mown grass if the schedule of cutting is adhered to 
there will be no burden of cut grass lying around. However if weather conditions interfere with 
schedule cut grass will be longer and mown grass may be lying around but by and large this only 

Page 34



occasional happens The contract does not allow for the collection of mown grass however they are 
expected to make sure that they do not drag grass cutting onto the pavement and tidy up after 
themselves see above. 
 
             Payments and penalties: 
 
1.2.1 Payments under this tender will be made in instalments certified monthly following site 

inspections with the successful Contractor and satisfactory progress of landscape 
maintenance operations. 

  
1.2.2 If the performance standards are not met, a retention of 15% will be deducted. The 

deductions will be restored at the next payment provided that defects in performance are 
remedied within 7 days from the date of inspection. If however the defects are not remedied 
within 7 days then the 15% penalty will be with held. 

 
1.2.3 Monthly instalments will only be paid when the Parks Superintendent’s Office is satisfied that 

an accurate, fully completed Landscape Maintenance Contract Visit Report (see 1.4.5) has 
been received and that all works on site have been completed in a satisfactory manner.  

 
1.2.4 If any part of the maintenance schedule is outstanding, its value will be deducted from 

payment. 
 
     Termination of Contract: 
 
1.3.1 If the Contractor wishes to withdraw from any of the contracts listed in the attached Schedule 

of Works, four weeks’ notice, in writing, must be provided to the Parks Superintendent’s 
Office. Before any outstanding charges shall be paid, satisfactory arrangements shall be 
made regarding the return in a well-maintained condition of all sites included in any such 
contract.  The Parks Superintendent’s Office reserves the right to reduce the area of the 
contract at any time during the contract period and amend the contract costs on a pro-rata 
basis. 

 
1.3.2 The Parks Superintendent’s Office reserves the right to terminate any of the contracts listed in 

the attached Schedule of Works for any reason whatsoever. 
 
1.3.3 Four weeks’ notice will normally be given to the Contractor of the Parks Superintendent’s 

Office intention to so conclude any contract(s), except where a Contractor is being dismissed 
from the contract on the basis of unsatisfactory performance (see next clause). 

 
1.3.4 Where a Contractor has been given two verbal warnings of unsatisfactory performance at any 

point during the contract period, only one week (7 days) notice need be given to the 
Contractor of the Parks Superintendent’s Office intention to conclude any contract(s). 

 
             Break Clause see 1.3.2 (above)  
 
This clause in the Grass maintenance contract allows DCC Parks and Landscape Services to end the 
contract early.  
 
            Contract Value: 
 
The grass cutting Contract for the city is broken up into contract areas or separate lots The NCA is 
Lot no.4-North Central.  The value of the contract area Lot no.4-North €308,714.00 per annum. The 
NCA is by far the largest grass maintenance area in the city. 
 
All areas of parks and open spaces under the control of DCC Parks and Landscape Service not 
included in the Grass cutting contract are maintained by direct labour.  

 
Noêl McEvoy 
Executive Parks Superintendent. 

 

Page 35





NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP 

19TH  FEBRUARY 2018 

  
 

 The Lord Mayor's 5 Alive Challenge is back for 2018! The initiative is a partnership programme 
between Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership and the Lord Mayor’s Office. 
The Challenge is in its 6th year and has encouraged hundreds of people to take up regular 
exercise over the past 5 years. 
 
This year we are going back to our roots and have targeted people who are interested in taking 
up jogging or those who have started and need some encouragement to keep it going. For 2018, 
we have also introduced Mentors - people who have completed the Challenge in previous years 
and who will run with slower joggers/walkers and encourage them around the course. 
 
The Challenge is to complete 5 Dublin road races –  
 

Tom Brennan Memorial 5k New Year's Day Road Race on 1st January   
AXA Raheny 5 on 28th January   
BHAA Garda Cross Country 2 Mile/4 Mile on 3rd February 
MSB St. Patrick's Festival 5k Race and Family Fun Run on 18th March 
BHAA Dublin City Council 10k race on 7th April 
 
The Tom Brennan Memorial 5k took place in the Phoenix Park on New Year's Day.  It was a cold 
and breezy day but there was a great atmosphere amongst the committed and enthusiastic Five 
Aliver’s helped along by their Mentors who provided great support. 
 
The Raheny 5 Mile was a huge success for our Five Alivers with some saying that it was the 
furthest they had run or the first time they had run five miles without stopping.   

 
 

 Older Adults Chair Aerobics Class - a free physical activity programme aimed at older adults in a 
community setting.  This class combines a series of aerobic, strength, balance & flexibility 
components to ensure older adults keep active no matter what their age.  For further details or 
to sign up please contact our HSE Health Promotion & Improvement Officer, David Phelan, at 01-
2227734/087-6525001 or david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie 
 

Area Venue Start date Days & Times 

Marino 

Carelton Hall 

53 Shelmartin Avenue 

Clontarf, Dublin 3 

Tuesday January 9th 

at 2:30pm 

Every Tuesday at 

2:30pm for 12 weeks 

 

Page 37

https://www.facebook.com/TBM5kNewYearsDayRace/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/axaraheny5/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/msbpatricks5k/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/BHAA-375711882376/?fref=mentions
https://www.facebook.com/DublinCityCouncil/?fref=mentions
mailto:david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie


 Men on the Move - a free physical activity programme that is aimed at adult men who have 
been inactive for a while and want to get back to exercising and improving their fitness levels.  It 
involves twice weekly exercise sessions made up of a combination of aerobic, strength & 
flexibility components.   The programme will run in 3 areas for 12 weeks starting in January. For 
further details or to sign up please contact our HSE Health Promotion & Improvement Officer, 
David Phelan, at 01-2227734/087-6525001 or david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie 

 

Area Venue Start date Days & Times 

Coolock 
Glin Rd Sports Complex 

Glin Rd, Coolock, D17 

Tuesday January 9th 

at 11am 

Every Tuesday & 

Friday at 11am for 

12 weeks 

 

 Thrive 
Thrive is a referral programme geared towards engaging people with mental health difficulties. 
This can range from people who suffer with anxiety or depression right through to people who 
may have suffered an acquired brain injury and need assistance in re-integrating into their 
communities from a personal independence, social & general wellbeing viewpoint. Some current 
ongoing Thrive programmes include- 

 
Thrive Fitness:  
2 groups currently using Darndale Gym daily in conjunction with the HSE and Suaimhneas 
Clubhouse. The sessions aim to improve participants’ confidence, fitness & general wellbeing. 
The local DCSWP Sport Officer also facilitates sessions every Monday & Wednesday in St. 
Michael’s House Leisure Centre, Belcamp. 
 
A Multi-Sport Thrive Programme is continuing with the Donnycarney Community Employment 
Scheme. This programme is for former drug users who have stabilised. Activities include 
badminton, basketball, hockey and football. The sessions take place at Donnycarney Community 
Hall on Tuesdays at 12.30pm. 
 

 Get Dublin Walking: DCSWP Sport Officers, in partnership with the HSE and DCC Community 
Section are rolling out a series of walking groups across the city under the banner of ‘Get Dublin 
Walking’. One such group meets at Memorial Park, Coolock, every Tuesday morning at 9.30am. 

 

 Raheny Way Walking Route: In partnership with Raheny Tidy Towns we are almost ready to 
map and publish three community walking routes which, when combined, will make up the 
‘Raheny Way’. This is an ongoing project which should become part of Irish Heart Foundation’s 
Slí Na Sláinte Programme and Dublin City Walking Trails Guide. 

 

 Change for Life: DCSWP Sport Officers will combine resources to deliver a community based 
health related fitness programmme to members of the public in north Dublin. The programme 
will run in tandem with the Operation Transformation TV show and combines weekly exercise 
sessions, nutritional advice and structured walks to help improve overall health, wellbeing and 
quality of life. Sessions commenced on Monday 15th January and will take place on Monday & 
Wednesday mornings in Darndale Hall and on Thursdays in Evolutis Gym, Coolock. Runs until 24st 
February. 

 

Page 38

mailto:david.phelan6@mail.dcu.ie


A similar programme will also be delivered to young people in north Dublin, commencing on 
Wednesday 17th January in Evolutis Gym, Coolock. The programme will involve a partnership 
with 7 local youth services and targets 13 - 16 year olds who are overweight or at risk of 
becoming overweight. Runs until 24st February. 

 

 Couch To 5k: A weekly jogging and running programme for beginners and improvers takes place 
every Tuesday and Thursday in Fr. Collins Park.   The group has 21 adult members who took part 
in their first parkrun in late December. Further Couch to 5k programmes are currently ongoing in 
Priorswood Park (Tuesday & Thursday mornings) and Darndale Park (Wednesday mornings). The 
programmes will continue through early 2018 and compliment the Lord Mayor 5 Alive race 
series.  8 particpants from the Couch to 5K programme will participate in the Operation 
Transformation 5 K in the Phoenix Park which will be taking place on 24th Feb at 10am. 

 

 Schools Swimming, Coolock Pool (Northside Shopping Centre): In partnership with Swim 
Ireland, local DCSWP Sport Officers are currently delivering weekly swimming lessons to 40-50 
children from the Darndale & Coolock areas every Friday. 

 

 Swimming & Water Safety: In partnership with the HSE, the local DCSWP Sports Officer 
currently delivers a weekly swimming and water safety lesson to young men aged 18-25 years 
who are part of a community development team from Kilbarrack.  
All water activities form part of a full-time health related fitness programme which will give 
them the opportunity to progress and become lifeguards and swimming teachers in 2018. 

 

 Learn to Swim Programme: Every Wednesday afternoon in Coolock Pool. This programme 
teaches young people from local youth services the basics of swimming and general water 
confidence. This programme is delivered in conjunction with Swim Ireland’s Participation Officer. 

 

 EBD Programme: This is a pilot programme every Tuesday morning in OLI School, Priorswood. 
The initiative targets kids aged 8 to 12 years of age with behavioural problems and/or emotional 
issues. The mindfulness/yoga based programme helps to teach these young kids how to control 
their moods and behavior. The programme will expand to include swimming lessons in 2018. 

 

 Fit 4 Class - Primary Schools: In partnership with Athletics Ireland, DCSWP will ensure each 
primary school receives a free multi-sports kit and games book suitable for delivering a wide 
range of fun physical activity sessions and games. DCSWP Sport Officers for the North Central 
Area will deliver introductory sessions to local schools (starting in St. Pauls ,OLI Darndale and 
finishing in St. Francis Priorwood) each Thursday afternoon. One North Central school will be 
chosen to take part in a citywide fitness testing programme as part of ongoing research into 
children’s fitness levels.   

 

 Active Schools Flag 
The local DCSWP Sports Officer is working with OLI School Darndale & St. Francis School 
Priorswood to help them achieve the Active Schools Flag. 

 

 Walking Football Ayrfield  
This initiative by the local FAI/DCSWP Football Development Officer targets older adults & Men’s 
Sheds from the wider area and provides them with the opportunity to take part in some gentle, 
fun, exercise with a social aspect. The sessions take place every Tuesday at 2.30pm in Ayrfield 
Community Centre.        

 

Page 39



 A Chair Aerobics Programme for older adults (specifically with arthritis issues) continues every 
Friday in Killester Parish Centre from 11.30am – 12.30pm. 

 

 Central Remedial Clinic Sports Programme: This programme, facilitated by DCSWP Sport Officer 
John Sweeney, takes place every Thursday in Ballybough Community Centre. A group of 
participants from the CRC participate in an adapted football session from 10am – 11am before a 
second group takes part in a more general multi-sport session from 11am – 12pm. 

 

 Bokwa classes take place on Tuesday (8pm) & Thursday (9pm) evenings in Kilmore Community 
Centre. Bokwa is a cardio based blend of hip-hop and step aerobics that taps into South African-
style dance and is fast gaining popularity everywhere! 
 

 The DCC facility in Kilmore also hosts St. Luke’s Active Age Retirement Bowling Club every 
Monday, Wednesday & Friday morning. New members welcome. 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
Boxing Development Officer Update 

 The Startbox Initiative, a partnership between the IABA and Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing 
Partnership, represents an ideal way for young people (10 – 17 years) to first engage with 
amateur boxing, Ireland’s most successful Olympic sport. It is delivered by our 5 dedicated 
IABA/DCSWP Development Officers via local schools (primary & TY level) in communities across 
the Dublin City area. Approx 2,000 young people take part each year.   
 

 Mid February, the Bronze programmes will be coming to an end.  All interested participants will 
progress from Bronze to the Silver stage, in March, where sessions will become more intense 
and technical.  In the Silver, participants will wear headgear and gumshields for the first time as 
we conduct body-sparring sessions and this gives us a better idea on whether or not the student 
will have what it takes to continue to the Gold.  Schools that will be visited in this period include 
6th class St.Francis SNS Priorswood, St.Davids Artane Transition Year, 6th Class Scoil Chiaran 
Donnycarney boys. 
 

 Students are weighed and graded in the Silver for suitable sparring, as we progress 
 
 

Rugby Development Officer Update 
 

 The local Leinster Rugby/DCSWP Development Officer has started fundamental movement 
sessions and tag rugby with a group in Ballybough Community Centre in an effort to improve 
their mental health & general Wellbeing. The sessions will run every few weeks depending on 
the group’s needs. 

 
 Clontarf Bulls are now midway through their 2nd season in existence. This team caters for local 

boys and girls with intellectual additional needs. Every child involved has shown ability to play 
rugby regardless of Autism Spectrum Disorder, Down Syndrome or other reasons that they 
require a little extra help. Many of their brothers and sisters play rugby, now these boys and girls 
have their own team.  The team is being led by a group of rugby coaches (including our own 
Leinster Rugby/DCSWP Development Officer) and volunteers with a particular interest in 
promoting the abilities of these children. The coaching group draws on active players, ex-players, 
teachers, special needs assistants, and academics focusing on people with special needs. 

 

Page 40



Rowing 
 

 Get Going … Get Rowing 
This initiative, jointly supported by DCSWP, Sport Ireland, Healthy Ireland, Active School Flag & 
Trinity College, has been successfully rolled out for a number of years by Rowing Ireland’s 
Leinster Women’s Development Officer, Michelle Carpenter. This is a rolling 4/6 week school’s 
programme for girls (second level). Rowing Ireland provide rowing machines and a community 
coach to the schools. 
 
A Transition Year Programme gives students the opportunity to get on the first step of the 
coaching ladder and enables them to be involved in a youth leadership role, working in a fun and 
interactive environment with younger students and hence, bringing value to the school. 

 

 Olympic Values Education Programme (accompanies above programme) 
Students will be taught values such as fair play, respect, dignity etc… through rowing. Get Going 
... Get Rowing will be the first programme in Ireland to roll this out.  

 
 
Cricket 
 

 Liaising with Sports Development Officers in the area to organise the running of cricket 

programs for the coming months.  

 

 Schoolyard cricket sessions are currently being held in the area during this period. In 

particular, we will focus on schools that are entered in the Leprechaun Cup (primary schools 

cricket competition) and the Secondary Schools competition.  

 

We will be focusing on the following schools in the area during this period:  

1. St Francis, Priorswood (Wednesday’s 1.00pm-2.30pm) 

2. Our Lady Immaculate Darndale (Wednesdays 11.00am-12.30pm) 

3. Howth Road National School Clontarf Rd 

4. Northbay ET Kilbarrack 

 

 Provincial cricket sessions are on during this period on Friday nights from 5.00pm-9.30pm in 

North County Cricket Club where we have a number of players from the North Central area 

involved in these sessions and in particular players from the Clontarf/Raheny area. Players 

are between 10-18 years of age. 

 Our annual Dublin City U12, U14 and U17 camps will in North County Cricket Club from the 

14th-16th of February from 10.00am-16.30pm where we have participants from all Dublin City 

areas. Participants attending from the North Central area will be from the Clontarf/Raheny 

area. 

 

Page 41



 
Contact details  
 
Antonia Martin, DCSWP Programmes & Services Development Manager: 
antonia.martin@dublincity.ie  
Alan Morrin, Acting Senior Staff Officer, DCSWP: alan.morrin@dublincity.ie  

David Moran, Acting Staff Officer DCSWP david.moran@dublincity.ie 

Jason Brady, Sports Officer: jason.brady@dublincity.ie  

Niall McDonald, Sports Officer: niall.mcdonald@dublincity.ie  

John Sweeney, Sports Officer: john.sweeney@dublincity.ie  

Daniel Russell, Sports Officer: daniel.russell@dublincity.ie  

Derek Ahern, Sports Officer: derek.ahern@dublincity.ie  

Jimmy Mowlds, FAI Soccer: jimmy.mowlds@fai.ie  

Ray McCabe, Rugby: ray.mccabe@leinsterrugby.ie  

Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  

Noel Burke, Boxing: noelkarenburke@gmail.com  

 

 

Report by 

David Moran 

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership 

 

  

Page 42

mailto:antonia.martin@dublincity.ie
mailto:alan.morrin@dublincity.ie
mailto:jason.brady@dublincity.ie
mailto:niall.mcdonald@dublincity.ie
mailto:john.sweeney@dublincity.ie
mailto:daniel.russell@dublincity.ie
mailto:derek.ahern@dublincity.ie
mailto:jimmy.mowlds@fai.ie
mailto:ray.mccabe@leinsterrugby.ie
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:noelkarenburke@gmail.com


Road Maintenance Services Works Programme 2018- North Central Area

Scheme/Activity Length Area Contract Direct Lab Length Area Contract Direct Lab Contract Direct Lab Length Area Contract Direct Lab Length Area Contract Direct Lab Contract Direct Lab

Carriageway

Collins Avenue East/ Howth Road 5600 €168,000

Vernon Avenue 4100 €94,300

Belcamp Gardens and Crescent 9400 €173,900

Croyden Gardens and Terrace 4200 €138,600

Celtic Park Ave and Collins Park 1000 €100,000

Clanree, Clanranald, Clanmahon, Clanhugh, Clanawley 

Joint Sealing 4000 €58,000

Foxhill Avenue 2550 €56,100

Blunden Drive 1400 €46,200

Middle Third 5500 €121,000

The Grove Bettyglen 950 €42,000

Footway

Collins Avenue East 1500 €99,000

Raheny Road 800 €52,800

Grange Park Estate 1000 €66,000

Limewood Estate 1000 €66,000

Watermill and All Saints Estates 1000 €66,000

Saint Donaghs Road 1000 €66,000

Clonshaugh Avenue/ Clonshaugh Heights 750 €49,500

Other

2016 Ramps

Traffic Ramps Upgrade €20,000 €50,000

Miscellaneous Direct Labour €345,000 €345,000

Street Name Plates €10,000 €10,000

Winter Maintenance €20,000 €20,000

Incident Response Unit €10,000 €10,000

Various Location Gullies €30,000

Totals 9700 €262,300 2300 €151,800 €20,000 €385,000 29000 €735,800 €0 4750 €313,500 €0 €50,000 €415,000

Area Contract Direct Lab

Regional Carriageway Improvements 9,700 €262,300 €0

Regional Footpath Improvements 2,300 €151,800 €0

Regional Other €20,000 €385,000

Local Carriageway Improvements 29,000 €735,800 €0

Local Footpath Improvements 4,750 €313,500 €0

Local Other €50,000 €415,000

Totals €1,533,400 €800,000

Note- All jobs are subject to competative tender. Estimates base on 2017 rates.

Local OtherLocal Footpath ImprovementsNorth Central Area Regional Carriageway Improvements Regional Footpath Improvements Regional Other Local Carriageway Improvements

P
age 43





The Chairman and Members of  

North Central Area Committee. 

 

 

Roads and Traffic Works Programme 2018 
 
 
2018 Works Programme package 3. 
 
Clarehall Ave.: Pedestrian Crossing 
Tonlegee Road at Millbrook Road: Pedestrian Crossing & junction Upgrade. 
Kilbarron Road, Removal of Plynth and provision of new parking scheme. 
 
 
Traffic calming Schemes 2018 subject to available funding. 
 
 
Adare Park, Coolock: 3 Ramps 
Annadale Drive, Marino: 5 Ramps 
Edenmore Green:4 Ramps 
Kincora Road: 4 Ramps 
Hazelwood Park, Coolock: 2 Ramps 
Thornville Ave, Kilbarrack: 2 Ramps 
Kincora Grove: 3 Ramps 
Sion Hill Road, Drumcondra: 1 Ramp 
Swans Nest Ave,: 2 Ramps 
Grace Park Heights: 1 Ramp ? 
 
 
Alan O’Mara 
 
North Central Area Engineer 
 
 
 

Page 45





The Chairman and Members of  

North Central Area Committee. 

 

 

 

North Central Parks District (Area = North Central Area Committee except Ellenfield which is North West  Area Committee) 

 
 

Park/Open Space Job No.  Description Budget  Other  Notes 
Edenmore Park   General improvements €20,000   

St Annes  Macadam path in allotments €5,000   

St Annes  Arboretum signage/interpretation  €10,000  Trees on a GIS inventory 

Rock field, Artane   Reinstate grass surface €15,000  Disused training area 

Clare Hall   Improvements around Ice house  €4,000 €3,750 City Archaeologist 

Ellenfield Park  Repair/replace railings and shrubbery  €25,000  Area Office 

Various locations   Mechanical mass planting of bulbs €18,000  bulb mix €9k /1000m2 

SUB TOTAL   €80,000   

P
age 47





1 
 

 
HOUSING ALLOCATIONS REPORT JANUARY 2018 

CURRENT WAITING LIST STATISTICS AND LATEST LETTINGS REPORT  
 
               JANUARY 2018 
 
 
 
 

Contents - 
Tables 1 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 
Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 5 (a) - JANUARY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
Table 5 (b)-JANUARY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 6 - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY & MONTH 
Table 7 - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 
Table 7 (a) JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
Tables 8(a)(b)  - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 DCC, LEASING AND VOLUNTARY LETTINGS LIST FIGURES  
Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
Tables 10 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
 
 
 
 
  
 

P
age 49



2 
 

 
Tables 1 (a) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
 
 

BAND 1 HOUSING Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Traveller Priority 66 21 25 1 32 6 2 153

Housing Medical Priority 65 7 31 14 14 21 9 14 9 3 187

Housing Medical Priority older person 11 7 7 2 1 4 4 4 40

Welfare Priority 23 1 5 9 9 11 6 4 2 70

Welfare Priority older person 2 1 2 2 1 3 1 1 13

Homeless Priority 669 165 341 352 177 137 160 89 61 25 2176

Homeless Priority older person 29 3 16 21 15 6 12 24 12 3 141

Band 1 Grand Total 865 197 426 406 251 183 189 138 89 36 2780

BAND 2 HOUSING Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 2 Housing List 1657 321 1101 679 703 659 492 371 476 104 6563

Band 2 Housing List older person 76 5 73 70 26 30 29 43 77 13 442

Band 2 Grand Total 1733 326 1174 749 729 689 521 414 553 117 7005

BAND 3 HOUSING Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 3 Housing List 2670 374 1568 721 803 766 536 449 655 121 8663

Band 3 Housing List older person 231 20 153 101 78 81 56 71 130 21 942

Band 3 Grand Total 2901 394 1721 822 881 847 592 520 785 142 9605

Total HOUSING LIST TOTAL 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

JANUARY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Band Category TABLE 1 (a)

Band 1

Band 2

Band 3

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 50



3 
 

Tables 1 (b)(c) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 

 

TABLE 1 (b)

BAND 1 TRANSER LIST Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Surrendering Larger priority 12 8 18 12 19 9 17 11 6 3 115

Transfer HAP Band 1 263 53 141 75 77 66 45 23 27 6 776

Transfer HAP Band 1 Older Person 6 4 3 1 2 3 3 1 23

Transfer Medical priority 34 3 27 24 15 11 21 17 7 159

Transfer Medical priority older person 8 3 10 15 5 7 10 9 3 1 71

Transfer Welfare priority 46 12 42 21 51 30 21 17 8 5 253

Transfer Welfare priority older person 3 4 3 11 4 5 5 35

Band 1 Transfer List Grand Total 372 79 246 153 179 125 121 85 50 22 1432

BAND 2 TRANSFER LIST Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 2 Transfer List 251 52 217 202 172 183 178 134 52 41 1482

Band 2 Transfer List older person 75 7 70 39 23 28 14 36 40 9 341

Band 2 Transfer List Grand Total 326 59 287 241 195 211 192 170 92 50 1823

BAND 3 TRANSFER LIST Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

Band 3 Transfer List 1089 190 717 469 490 456 463 283 173 114 4444

Band 3 Transfer List older person 59 37 78 63 70 33 71 45 45 12 513

Band 3 Transfer List Grand Total 1148 227 795 532 560 489 534 328 218 126 4957

Total TRANSFER LIST TOTAL 1846 365 1328 926 934 825 847 583 360 198 8212

TABLE 1 (c)

Waiting List Code Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J  Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N  Area P   Grand Total

HOUSING LIST TOTAL 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

TRANSFER LIST TOTAL 1846 365 1328 926 934 825 847 583 360 198 8212

COMBINED GRAND TOTAL 7345 1282 4649 2903 2795 2544 2149 1655 1787 493 27602

Band 1

Band 2

Band 3

JANUARY 2018 Combined Waiting List Figures by Band Category

JANUARY 2018 Transfer Waiting List figures by Band Category

 

 

 

P
age 51



4 
 

Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 

 

TABLE 2 (a)

No of Years Waiting on List Area B Area D Area E Area H BallyboughArea J Area K Area L Area M Area N Area P Grand Total

0 to 1 Years 849 126 391 197 267 186 136 130 116 18 2416

1 to 5 Years 2134 324 1281 783 669 712 529 393 541 91 7457

5 to 10 Years 2028 363 1233 744 732 620 460 410 520 95 7205

Over 10 Years 488 104 416 253 193 201 177 139 250 91 2312

Housing List Total 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

TABLE 2 (b)

Years Area B Area D Area E Area H Area J Area K Area L Area M Area N Area P Grand Total

0 to 1 Years 229 46 139 64 83 62 71 50 28 7 779

1 to 5 Years 598 133 401 302 274 204 241 163 101 38 2455

5 to 10 Years 567 126 408 281 285 263 272 195 114 57 2568

Over 10 Years 452 60 380 279 292 296 263 175 117 96 2410

Transfer List Total 1846 365 1328 926 934 825 847 583 360 198 8212

TABLE 2 (c)

Years Area B Area D Area E Area H Area J Area K Area L Area M Area N Area P Grand Total

0 to 1 Years 1078 172 530 261 350 248 207 180 144 25 3195

1 to 5 Years 2732 457 1682 1085 943 916 770 556 642 129 9912

5 to 10 Years 2595 489 1641 1025 1017 883 732 605 634 152 9773

Over 10 Years 940 164 796 532 485 497 440 314 367 187 4722

Combined List Total 7345 1282 4649 2903 2795 2544 2149 1655 1787 493 27602

JANUARY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Waiting Time

JANUARY 2018 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Waiting Time

JANUARY 2018 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Waiting Time

 

 

 

P
age 52



5 
 

Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
 
 

TABLE 3 (a)

Bedsize Requirements Area B Kilbarrack/CoolockArea D Ballymun/PoppintreeArea E Finglas/CabraArea H BallyboughArea J Ballyfermot/Bluebell/InchArea K Crumlin/WalkinstownArea L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Pearse St/Ringsend/DonnybrookArea N Ranelagh/RathminesArea P Nth West Cent/SmithfieldGrand Total

1 Bed 2744 438 1619 1394 901 832 890 713 946 170 10647

2 Bed 2050 345 1209 433 725 589 289 276 334 77 6327

3 Bed 661 120 447 134 212 254 99 73 124 43 2167

4 Bed 41 10 39 12 20 38 18 8 20 5 211

5 Bed 3 4 7 4 3 6 6 2 3 38

Housing List Total 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

TABLE 3 (b)

Bedsize Requirements Area B Kilbarrack/CoolockArea D Ballymun/PoppintreeArea E Finglas/CabraArea H BallyboughArea J Ballyfermot/Bluebell/InchArea K Crumlin/WalkinstownArea L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Pearse St/Ringsend/DonnybrookArea N Ranelagh/RathminesArea P Nth West Cent/SmithfieldGrand Total

1 Bed 524 131 416 430 301 208 434 292 201 81 3018

2 Bed 782 136 528 288 356 335 253 185 102 82 3047

3 Bed 473 80 337 186 240 247 144 96 51 30 1884

4 Bed 60 17 41 17 29 33 15 10 6 4 232

5 Bed 7 1 6 5 8 2 1 1 31

Transfer List Total 1846 365 1328 926 934 825 847 583 360 198 8212

TABLE 3 (c)

Bedsize Requirements Area B Area D Area E Area H Area J Area K Area L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Area N Area P Grand Total

1 Bed 3268 569 2035 1824 1202 1040 1324 1005 1147 251 13665

2 Bed 2832 481 1737 721 1081 924 542 461 436 159 9374

3 Bed 1134 200 784 320 452 501 243 169 175 73 4051

4 Bed 101 27 80 29 49 71 33 18 26 9 443

5 Bed 10 5 13 9 11 8 7 2 3 1 69

Combined List Total 7345 1282 4649 2903 2795 2544 2149 1655 1787 493 27602

JANUARY2018 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements

JANUARY2018 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements

JANUARY2018 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements

 

 

 

P
age 53



6 
 

Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2018 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 
 

TABLE 4 (a)

Family Size Area B Kilbarrack/CoolockArea D Ballymun/PoppintreeArea E Finglas/CabraArea H BallyboughArea J Ballyfermot/Bluebell/InchArea K Crumlin/WalkinstownArea L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Pearse St/Ringsend/DonnybrookArea N Ranelagh/RathminesArea P Nth West Cent/SmithfieldGrand Total

SingleS 2537 413 1488 1277 836 768 821 662 867 154 9823

CoupleS 190 24 127 116 57 61 68 47 76 15 781

Families 2772 480 1706 584 968 890 413 363 484 126 8786

Housing Grand Total 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

TABLE 4 (b)

Family Size Area B Kilbarrack/CoolockArea D Ballymun/PoppintreeArea E Finglas/CabraArea H BallyboughArea J Ballyfermot/Bluebell/InchArea K Crumlin/WalkinstownArea L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Pearse St/Ringsend/DonnybrookArea N Ranelagh/RathminesArea P Nth West Cent/SmithfieldGrand Total

Singles 461 116 360 383 251 173 379 249 178 66 2616

Couples 62 15 56 47 49 33 55 40 21 11 389

Families 1323 234 912 496 634 619 413 294 161 121 5207

Transfer Grand Total 1846 365 1328 926 934 825 847 583 360 198 8212

TABLE 4 (c)

Family Size Area B Area D Area E Area H BallyboughArea J Area K Area L Area M Area N Area P Grand Total

Singles 2998 529 1848 1660 1087 941 1200 911 1045 220 12439

Couples 252 39 183 163 106 94 123 87 97 26 1170

Families 4095 714 2618 1080 1602 1509 826 657 645 247 13993

Combinded Grand Total 7345 1282 4649 2903 2795 2544 2149 1655 1787 493 27602

JANUARY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Family Size

JANUARY 2018 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Family Size

JANUARY 2018 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Family Size

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 54



7 
 

Table 5 (a) - JANUARY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
 

Size Years Area B Kilbarrack/CoolockArea D Ballymun/PoppintreeArea E Finglas/CabraArea H BallyboughArea J Ballyfermot/Bluebell/InchArea K Crumlin/WalkinstownArea L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Pearse St/Ringsend/DonnybrookArea N Ranelagh/RathminesArea P Nth West Cent/SmithfieldGrand Total

One Bed 0 to 1 Years 489 74 237 150 162 107 109 85 86 13 1512

1 to 5 Years 1133 172 677 557 358 378 348 270 361 52 4306

5 to 10 Years 942 155 570 524 317 285 318 263 351 65 3790

Over 10 Years 180 37 135 163 64 62 115 95 148 40 1039

One Bed Total 2744 438 1619 1394 901 832 890 713 946 170 10647

Two Bed 0 to 1 Years 306 42 128 40 95 66 23 38 26 4 768

1 to 5 Years 805 118 473 173 268 246 139 104 142 31 2499

5 to 10 Years 766 152 455 174 297 216 104 108 119 19 2410

Over 10 Years 173 33 153 46 65 61 23 26 47 23 650

Two Bed Total 2050 345 1209 433 725 589 289 276 334 77 6327

Three Bed 0 to 1 Years 49 7 21 6 10 12 3 6 4 1 119

1 to 5 Years 184 29 118 42 39 78 37 17 34 7 585

5 to 10 Years 305 54 193 44 111 98 31 38 42 9 925

Over 10 Years 123 30 115 42 52 66 28 12 44 26 538

Three Bed Total 661 120 447 134 212 254 99 73 124 43 2167

Four Bed 0 to 1 Years 3 2 2 1 1 1 1 11

1 to 5 Years 12 3 13 9 3 9 4 2 4 1 60

5 to 10 Years 15 1 14 1 6 20 5 1 7 2 72

Over 10 Years 11 4 10 1 11 8 8 4 9 2 68

Four Bed Total 41 10 39 12 20 38 18 8 20 5 211

Five Bed 0 to 1 Years 2 1 3 6

1 to 5 Years 2 2 1 1 1 7

5 to 10 Years 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 8

Over 10 Years 1 3 1 1 4 3 2 2 17

Five Bed Total 3 4 7 4 3 6 6 2 3 38

Housing List Total 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

JANUARY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements & Time on List

 
 

P
age 55



8 
 

Table 5 (b)-JANUARY 2018 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 

Table 5 (b)

Family Size Area B Kilbarrack/CoolockArea D Ballymun/PoppintreeArea E Finglas/CabraArea H BallyboughArea J Ballyfermot/Bluebell/InchArea K Crumlin/WalkinstownArea L James/Newmarket/CoombeArea M Pearse St/Ringsend/DonnybrookArea N Ranelagh/RathminesArea P Nth West Cent/SmithfieldGrand Total

Single 2537 413 1488 1277 836 768 821 662 867 154 9823

Single+1 1104 176 649 224 424 332 142 151 138 36 3376

Single+2 580 137 406 95 198 194 55 43 65 23 1796

Single+3 179 35 96 30 53 80 19 18 28 9 547

Single+4 35 6 26 7 11 15 2 6 3 4 115

Single+5 4 1 9 3 2 4 1 6 2 32

Single+6 1 1 5 2 1 10

Single+7 1 1 1 3

Singles Total 4440 768 2676 1637 1529 1395 1042 880 1107 228 15702

Couple 190 24 127 116 57 61 68 47 76 15 781

Couple+1 290 36 138 65 73 71 53 57 82 19 884

Couple+2 362 45 231 92 108 80 71 54 98 19 1160

Couple+3 154 26 86 39 58 60 38 20 33 10 524

Couple+4 44 8 44 18 25 30 13 7 22 3 214

Couple+5 15 6 9 6 9 13 10 5 4 1 78

Couple+6 2 1 5 1 2 6 3 1 3 24

Couple+7 2 3 4 2 3 1 2 17

Couple+8 1 1 1 3

Couple+9 2 2

Couple+10 1 1

Couples Total 1059 149 645 340 332 324 260 192 320 67 3688

Housing List Total 5499 917 3321 1977 1861 1719 1302 1072 1427 295 19390

JANUARY 2018 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Family Size

 

 

P
age 56



9 
 

Table 6 - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY AND MONTH 
 

Category Of Award                                         Housing                                     Transfer   TABLE 6

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Housing 

Grand 

Total JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Transfer 

Grand 

Total RAS

No of 

Lettings

Medical 5 9 14 7 6 9 12 3 12 6 15 14 112 5 4 3 6 4 7 5 3 1 2 10 7 57 169

Welfare 4 9 8 4 8 11 5 5 7 8 14 83 2 6 3 4 6 4 2 5 4 3 5 11 55 138

Traveller priority 2 2 2 1 1 3 1 1 2 5 2 22 22

Surrendering Larger 1 1 2 12 2 2 10 2 32 32

BAND Tied Accommodation 1 1 1

1 Detenanting 3 3 1 1 2 3 1 4 2 37 3 60 60

Essential Maintenance 2 1 3 3

Transfer HAP priority 3 3

Homeless Priority 18 29 48 36 43 32 35 54 42 15 67 64 483 483

Financial Contribution 1 7 2 1 11 11

Regeneration 12 12 12

Band 1 Total 29 49 72 49 58 62 54 62 62 25 108 94 724 11 14 7 13 12 28 7 11 9 9 62 27 210 934

BAND 2 Band 2 14 23 16 12 19 33 11 17 14 15 29 14 217 5 7 10 10 17 11 8 2 16 6 17 18 127 344

BAND 3 Band 3 17 14 5 6 8 36 6 13 9 11 20 21 166 10 9 15 3 14 11 5 13 17 12 18 15 142 308

TOTAL HOUSING LIST LETTINGS60 86 93 67 85 131 71 92 85 51 157 129 1107 26 30 32 26 43 50 20 26 42 27 97 60 479 1586

TOTAL HOUSING LIST LETTINGS 1107 479

RAS Lettings 21 21

Mortage to Rent 6 3 5 2 3 3 9 1 6 0 10 3 51 51

TOTAL LETTINGS incl MTR / RAS66 89 98 69 88 134 80 93 91 51 167 132 1158 26 30 32 26 43 50 20 26 42 27 97 60 479 21 1658

 
 
 

P
age 57



10 
 

Table 7 - JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 
Jan - Dec 2017 Combined Lettings List report by Band TABLE 7

Priority or Points Housing List Transfer list Grand Total  Medical Priority Cases Housed in Jan-Dec 2017

Detenanting 60 60 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total
Essential Maintenance 3 3 Intellectual 11 4 15

Financial Contribution 11 11 Mental Health 16 4 20

Homeless Priority 483 483 Physical 79 48 127

Band 1 Medical Priority 112 57 169 Sensory 6 1 7

Regeneration 13 13 Grand Total 112 57 169

Surrender Larger 32 32

Transfer HAP Priority 3 3 Other Cases Housed with disabilities Jan - Dec 2017

Tied Accommodation 1 1 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total
Traveller Priority 22 22 Intellectual 10 1 11

Welfare Priority 83 55 138 Mental Health 31 4 35

Grand Total 725 210 935 Physical 44 2 46

Sensory 3 2 5

Band 2 Band 2 217 127 344 Grand Total 88 9 97

Band 3 Band 3 165 142 307 Total Cases Housed with disability attached Jan - Dec 2017

Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total
Combined Housing & Transfer  Total 1107 479 1586 Intellectual 21 5 26

Mental Health 47 8 55

Combined Housing & Transfer  Total 1586 Physical 124 50 174

Other Lists not in Bands Sensory 9 3 12

Mortgage to Rent 51 Grand Total 201 66 267

RAS 21

Overall Total inc RAS & MTR 1658

 Table 7 (a) JAN TO DECEMBER 2017 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
TABLE 7 (a)

Homeless Housed 

by Family Size

North Central 

Area

Central Area North West 

Area

South East 

Area

South Central 

Area

Grand Total

Singles 18 38 23 40 46 165

Families 73 23 110 19 93 318

Grand Total 91 61 133 59 139 483  

P
age 58



11 
 

Tables 8 (a)(b)  - JAN TO DEC 2017 DCC, LEASING AND VOLUNTARY LETTINGS LIST  
DCC UNITS                                            HOUSING LIST LETTINGS JAN - DEC 2017 Table 8 (a)

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Financial Contribution 1 1 1 1 4

Homeless Priority 56 22 47 14 32 25 29 19 9 5 258

BAND Medical Priority 10 5 10 3 8 7 10 4 3 3 63

1 Regeneration 1 1

Tied Accommodation 1 1

Traveller Priority 7 2 4 1 14

Welfare Priority 12 5 8 4 10 7 5 5 1 5 62

Band 1 Total 85 34 70 23 51 40 45 28 13 14 403

BAND 2 Housing List Band 2 22 11 19 11 9 6 33 15 1 2 129

BAND 3 Housing List Band 3 26 11 24 9 6 10 8 3 2 1 100

Housing list DCC Units Total 133 56 113 43 66 56 86 46 16 17 632

Social Leasing Units Social Leasing

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

BAND 1 Homeless Priority 1 1 2 3 7

BAND 2 Housing List Band 2 4 4

Housing List Social Leasing Total 1 1 2 7 11

VOLUNTARY UNITS Voluntary

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Financial Contribution 1 6 7

Homeless Priority 34 21 45 30 13 22 31 8 10 4 218

BAND Medical Priority 6 3 7 6 4 5 3 15 49

1 Regeneration 12 12

Traveller Priority 2 3 1 1 1 8

Welfare Priority 1 2 4 5 3 3 1 1 1 21

Housing list Band 1 Total 43 26 60 42 27 30 48 9 26 4 315

BAND 2 Housing list Band 2 14 3 16 11 17 2 13 8 84

BAND 3 Housing list Band 3 8 3 9 5 26 5 9 65

Housing List Voluntary Units Total 65 32 85 58 70 37 70 9 34 4 464

Housing List Total 199 88 199 103 136 93 156 55 50 28 1107  
*RAS, MORTGAGE TO RENT OR HAP figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 59



12 
 

 
DCC UNITS                                           TRANSFER LIST LETTINGS JAN - DEC 2017 Table 8 (b)

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Detenanting 5 9 2 3 1 20

Essential Maintenance 1 1 1 3

BAND Medical Priority 3 3 3 2 5 5 6 10 3 1 41

1 Surrender Larger 2 2 4 2 2 1 13

Transfer HAP Priority 1 1 2

Welfare Priority 8 1 6 6 5 5 6 4 2 43

Grand Total 11 6 16 18 14 15 19 15 5 3 122

BAND 2 Transfer List Band 2 Total 17 8 20 3 12 0 13 12 3 2 90

BAND 3 Transfer List Band 3 Total 16 8 20 13 6 6 13 9 3 3 97

Transfer List DCC Units Total 44 22 56 34 32 21 45 36 11 8 309

SOCIAL LEASING UNITS Leasing

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

BAND 2 Tranfer List Band 2 2 2

BAND 3 Tranfer List Band 3 4 1 4 1 1 1 2 14

Transfer list Social Leasing Total 4 0 1 6 0 1 1 0 1 2 16

VOLUNTARY UNITS Voluntary

Category Of Award Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Detenanting 3 3 34 40

BAND Medical Priority 3 5 1 1 2 1 3 16

1 Surrender Larger 9 9 1 19

Transfer HAP Prioriity 1 1

Welfare Priority 1 2 3 2 1 2 1 12

Transfer List Band 1 Total 4 0 19 7 11 2 39 2 4 0 88

BAND 2 Band 2 7 1 12 3 5 2 4 0 1 0 35

BAND 3 Band 3 2 0 2 6 2 0 17 0 2 0 31

Transfer List Voluntary Total 13 1 33 16 18 4 60 2 7 0 154

Transfer List Total 61 23 90 56 50 26 106 38 19 10 479

Combined Housing & Transfer Lettings Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Housing List Total 199 88 199 103 136 93 156 55 50 28 1107

Transfer List Total 61 23 90 56 50 26 106 38 19 10 479

Combined Housing & Transfer lettings 260 111 289 159 186 119 262 93 69 38 1586  
*RAS, MORTGAGE TO RENT OR HAP figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 60



13 
 

 
Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO December 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
 
Housing List Lettings Jan- Dec 2017 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (a)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 26 2 14 15 6 9 8 19 7 3 109

1 Bed 30 24 45 44 69 10 69 23 33 15 362

2 Bed 63 32 78 41 35 42 71 13 10 7 392

3 Bed 71 29 54 3 26 30 8 3 224

4 Bed 9 1 8 2 20

Housing List Total 199 88 199 103 136 93 156 55 50 28 1107

Transfer List Lettings Jan- Dec 2017 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (b)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 5 2 11 4 2 3 3 4 1 35

1 Bed 16 14 48 13 27 9 26 21 11 3 188

2 Bed 8 3 10 27 11 5 66 11 2 4 147

3 Bed 23 4 17 10 10 9 10 2 2 1 88

4 Bed 9 4 2 2 1 1 1 1 21

Transfer List Total 61 23 90 56 50 26 106 38 19 10 479

Combined Housing & Transfer List Lettings Jan- Dec 2017 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (c)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 31 4 25 19 6 11 11 22 11 4 144

1 Bed 46 38 93 57 96 19 95 44 44 18 550

2 Bed 71 35 88 68 46 47 137 24 12 11 539

3 Bed 94 33 71 13 36 39 18 2 2 4 312

4 Bed 18 1 12 2 2 3 1 1 1 41

Combined Total 260 111 289 159 186 119 262 93 69 38 1586  
 
* RAS, Mortgage to Rent or HAP figures not included in the above tables 
 

P
age 61



14 
 

Tables 10 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO DEC 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
Housing List Lettings Jan- Dec 2017 by Letting Category and Area Housed Table 10 (a)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 1 1

Maisonettes 4 2 6

Newbuild Apartment 6 6

Newbuild House 54 13 39 24 130

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 6 18 4 17 10 7 66 28 4 6 166

Previously Occupied (House) 19 12 21 6 17 17 2 4 98

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 21 1 21 3 1 15 8 1 71

Repossession 1 1

Senior Citizen Existing unit 28 5 23 17 14 15 10 18 12 6 148

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 5 5

Social Leasing 1 1 2 7 11

Voluntary Housing 65 32 85 58 70 37 70 9 34 4 464

Housing List Total 199 88 199 103 136 93 156 55 50 28 1107

Transfer List Lettings Jan- Dec 2017 by Letting Category and Area Housed Table 10 (b)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Maisonettes 2 1 3

Newbuild House 6 6

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 4 5 3 18 6 1 31 20 1 2 91

Previously Occupied (House) 8 5 7 11 12 5 7 1 2 3 61

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 7 1 7 3 5 1 1 25

Repossession 2 2

Senior Citizen Existing unit 10 9 36 5 11 10 6 15 8 2 112

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 9 9

Social Leasing 4 1 6 1 1 1 2 16

Voluntary Housing 13 1 33 16 18 4 60 2 7 154

Transfer List Total 61 23 90 56 50 26 106 38 19 10 479

Combined Housing & Transfer List Lettings Jan- Dec 2017 by Letting Category and Area Housed Table 10 (c)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 1 1

Maisonettes 2 5 2 9

Newbuild Apartment 6 6

Newbuild House 60 13 39 24 136

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 10 23 7 35 16 8 97 48 5 8 257

Previously Occupied (House) 27 17 28 17 29 22 9 1 2 7 159

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 28 2 28 3 4 20 9 2 96

Repossession 3 3

Senior Citizen Existing unit 38 14 59 22 25 25 16 33 20 8 260

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 14 14

Social Leasing 5 2 8 1 1 1 9 27

Voluntary Housing 78 33 118 74 88 41 130 11 41 4 618

Combined Total 260 111 289 159 186 119 262 93 69 38 1586  
* RAS, Mortgage to Rent or HAP figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 62



To the Members of the Area Committee 

North Central Area   
 

 

 
 

____________________________________________________________________                                    

Community Grants Scheme 2018 

 

Applications for financial assistance have been received from a number of bodies under the City Council's 

Community Grants Scheme 2018. 

These applications have been assessed in the context of available finance, value to the community and 

compliance with the relevant policies and objectives of the Council and in particular with relevance to the 

Social Inclusion Strategy. 

Set out below are details of the applications together with recommendations in relation to the amount of grant 

assistance for each applicant body. 

It is recommended that Dublin City Council make the grants to the groups as set out in the report below.  

There is provision in the 2018 budget to meet this expenditure. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Brendan Kenny 

Assistant Chief Executive 

 

Date:  1
st
 February 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



 

   NORTH CENTRAL AREA COMMUNITY GRANTS 2018 
  Group Name Category Amount Recommended 

5th Port Dollymount Sea Scouts Children / Young People  €                              250.00  

Active Age Group Older Persons  €                              300.00  

All Hallows Area Association Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Ard na Greine Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Ardmore Montrose Residents Association Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Ardrose Ladies Club Recreation  €                              400.00  

Artane/Beaumont Active Age Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Artane/Harmonstown Community Group Environmental  €                              400.00  

Aulden Grange Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Ayrfield Art Group Older Persons  €                              300.00  

Ayrfield Pitch & Putt Club Recreation  €                              300.00  

Ayrwaves Newsletter Social Inclusion  €                              400.00  

Ballyshannon Ladies Club Educational  €                              400.00  

Beaumont Active Retirement Association Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Beaumont Parish Community Pre-school Playgroup Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Beaumont Residents Association Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Beechpark Court Environmental Group Environmental  €                              400.00  

Blossom Ireland People with a Disability  €                              400.00  

BRG Artane Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Brookwood Artane Commmunity Development Festival / Event  €                              300.00  

Brookwood Lawn Festival / Event  €                              300.00  

Bunratty Community Childcare Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Calderwood Avenue Residence Social Group Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Cameron Horticultural Society Environmental  €                              300.00  

Cameron Park Active Age Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Cameron Park Residents Assoc Environmental  €                              400.00  

Casino Cherrymount Community Group Environmental  €                              400.00  

Celtic & Collins Park Residents Association Social Inclusion  €                              400.00  

Central Remedial Clinic CRC Social Inclusion  €                              400.00  

Charlemont Residents Association Environmental  €                              300.00  

Childvision  People with a Disability  €                          1,000.00  

Clancarthy Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Clare Hall Resident Association Social Inclusion  €                              400.00  

Clongriffin Town - Community Group Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Clontarf Garden Society Educational  €                              400.00  

Clontarf Historical Society Recreation  €                              400.00  

Clontarf Ladies Club Recreation  €                              400.00  

Clontarf Residents Association Educational  €                              400.00  

Coolock Brigin Group Children / Young People  €                              300.00  

Cuidiú Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Dance X Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Darndale Belcamp Pride in our Place Environmental  €                              400.00  

Page 64



Darndale Tenants & Residents Association Recreation  €                              200.00  

Darndale/Belcamp Playgroup Project Environmental  €                              400.00  

Dean Swift Sports Club Festival / Event  €                              300.00  

Desperate Housewives Ladies Club Recreation  €                              400.00  

Donaghmede ICA Festival / Event  €                              300.00  

Donnycarney Active Retirement Indoor Bowling 
Group 

 
 €                              200.00  

Donnycarney Trees Fun Week Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Donnycarney West Community Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Doras Buí a Parent Alone Resource Centre Festival / Event  €                              300.00  

Drumcondra Ladies Club Older Persons  €                              200.00  

Drumcondra National School People with a Disability  €                              400.00  

Drumcondra Parish Churchyard Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Drumcondra Tidy Village Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Dublin 5 Horticultural Society Environmental  €                              400.00  

Dublin Airport Singers Social Inclusion  €                              400.00  

Elm Mount Ladies Club Older Persons  €                              300.00  

Fairview Marino Tuesday Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Foxfield/Kilbarrack Active Retirement  Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Foxhall Bridge Club Recreation  €                              300.00  

Foxhound Inn Senior Citizen Group Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Friendly Call Service Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Friends of Fairview Day Care Centre Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Glasdrum Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Glin Court Garden Senior Citizens Committee Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Glin Court Senior Citizens Social Branch Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Golden Girls Donnycarney Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Gracepark Ladies Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Gracepark Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Gracepark, Richmond Road Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Grange Abbey Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Grange Woodbine Environment Group Environmental  €                              400.00  

Grange Woodbine Residents Association Senior Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Grattan Lodge Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Griffith Court Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Hazelwood Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

High Park Residents Association  Environmental  €                              300.00  

Holy Trinity Senior Citizens Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Ierne Social & Sports Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Kilbarrack Active Retirement Association Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Kilbarrack Coast Community Programme Festival / Event  €                          1,100.00  

Kilbarrack Community Childcare Recreation  €                              400.00  

Kilbarrack Community Development Project Educational  €                              400.00  

Kilbarrack/Foxfield Ladies Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Kilbarron Inclusive Senior Society Environmental  €                              400.00  

Kilbride Road Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Page 65



Kilmore West Afterschool Project Ltd Children / Young People  €                              300.00  

Kilmore West Community Playgroup Ltd Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Kilmore West Ladies Club Older Persons  €                              300.00  

Kilmore West Youth Project Recreation  €                              400.00  

Kincora Active Retirement Association Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Le Chéile Writers Educational  €                              300.00  

Lismeen Grove Social Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Marino Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Maryfield Ladies Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Measc Residents Assoc Environmental  €                              400.00  

Millwood Court Environment Group Environmental  €                              300.00  

Moatview Court Environmental Group Environmental  €                              300.00  

Newbury Enhancement Group Environmental  €                              400.00  

Northern Star Twirlers Children / Young People  €                              300.00  

Pobal Chluain Tarbh Educational  €                              400.00  

Priorswood & District Men's Shed Recreation  €                              270.00  

Raheny Court Residents & Social Committee Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Raheny Foroige Club Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Raheny Heritage Society Recreation  €                              400.00  

Raheny Ladybirds Irish Girl Guides Children / Young People  €                              250.00  

Raheny/Artane Par 3 Golf Club Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Rathvale Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Riverside Drama Circle Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Riverside Residents Association Environmental  €                              300.00  

Rosevale Court Residents Association Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Royal & Ancient Pitch & Putt society Recreation  €                              400.00  

Seven Oaks Environmental Group Environmental  €                              300.00  

Sion Hill Park Residents Association Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Siulinn Walking Club Older Persons  €                              300.00  

Special Needs Resource Dept Mercy College Coolock Environmental  €                              400.00  

SPRAOÍ Educational  €                              300.00  

Sr Catherine McCawley Ladies Club Recreation  €                              300.00  

St Anne's Court & Residents Association Older Persons  €                              400.00  

St Annes Walled Garden Allotments Environmental  €                              300.00  

St Anthony's House Social Inclusion  €                              400.00  

St Assams Community Gardens Environmental  €                              250.00  

St Benedicts Photographic Group Educational  €                              810.00  

St Brendan's BNS Environmental  €                              400.00  

St Brendan's Coolock A.R.A Bowling Club Older Persons  €                              300.00  

St Brendans Ladies Club Recreation  €                              300.00  

St Brigids Court Social Committee 
 

 €                              300.00  

St Brigids Parish Resource Centre Environmental  €                              500.00  

St Brigids Seniors  Recreation  €                              400.00  

St Davids Park Environmental  €                              300.00  

St Gabriels Court Residents Association Older Persons  €                              400.00  

St Gabriels Seniors Club Recreation  €                              400.00  

Page 66



St Johns Court Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

St Josephs Ladies Crafts Group Older Persons  €                              400.00  

St Lukes Active Retirement Assoc Recreation  €                              400.00  

St Paul's Knitting Group Recreation  €                              400.00  

The Artane Mens Shed Older Persons  €                              270.00  

the Bell Cleaners Environmental  €                              400.00  

The Donahies Resident's Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

The Thursday Club/ Active Retirement Older Persons  €                              300.00  

Trinity Adult Resource Groupfor Education & 
Training Environmental  €                              400.00  

Trinity Youth Services Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Tús Nua Artane Coolock FRC Children / Young People  €                              400.00  

Tús Nua Artane Coolock FRC Festival / Event  €                              400.00  

Tús Nua Artane Coolock FRC Older Persons  €                              400.00  

Woodlawn Residents Association Environmental  €                              400.00  

Woodville Park Ladies Club Recreation  €                              300.00  

  
 €                        56,500.00  

   INFORMAL ADULT EDUCATION 
  

1st Dublin Fairview Scouts 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

58th/85th Donnycarney Scouting Group  
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

92nd Dublin Clontarf St. Anthony Scout Group 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Ayrfield Circle of Friends Club 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Ayrfield Mens Shed 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Belmayne Educate Together NS 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Chanel College 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Coolock Library Art Group 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Darndale Belcamp Village Centre CLG 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Donaghmede & District Local History Society 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Doras Buí 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

Drumcondra Ladies Club 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Edenmore HSCL Coordinator 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Kilbarrack Coast Community Programme CLG 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Kilbarron Inclusive Senior Society 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Page 67



Mercy College Coolock HSCL 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

New Life Centre 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Priorswood & District Men's Shed 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Scoil Chaitríona HSCL 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Scoil Eoin 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

St Anns Court Art Group 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

St Benedict's & St Mary's National School 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

St Brendans Art Group 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

St Brendans BNS HSCL Group 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

St Brendans BNS HSCL Group 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

St John of God GNS 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

St Joseph's N.S Coolock 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

St Luke's Art club 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

St Michaels House STTC 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

The Artane Men's Shed 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              504.38  

Trinity Adult Resource Group for Education Training 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

Tús Nua Artane Coolock FRC 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              252.19  

Tús Nua Artane Coolock FRC 
Informal Adult 
Education  €                              756.57  

  
 €                        17,905.49  

    

Page 68



 

North Central Area Office, 
Northside Civic Centre, Bunratty Road, Coolock, Dublin 17.  

 
Oifig Ceantar an Lárthuaiscirt, 

Ionad Cathartha an Taoibh Thuaidh, Bóthar Bun Raite, 
An Chúlóg, Baile Atha Cliath 17. 

T. 01 222 8541  F. 01 877 5851 E. joanne.osullivan@dublincity.ie 
   

 

6th February 2018                             Ref: JOS/2284192/2018 

      

The Chairman and Members of  

North Central Area Committee. 

 

 

Naming & Numbering Proposal  

Phase 2C Parkside, Belmayne, Dublin 13 

_____________________________________________________________ 

37-44 Parkside Avenue/37-44 Ascaill Thaobh na Páirce (continuous) 
2-18 Parkside Row/ 2-18 Rae Thaobh na Páirce (evens) 

1-7 Parkside Grove/1-7 Garrán Thaobh na Páirce (continuous) 
1-5 Parkside Lane/1-5  Lána Thaobh na Páirce (continuous) 

1-59 Parkside Gardens/ 1-59 Gairdíní Thaobh na Páirce (continuous)            
 
Cairn PLC have submitted a naming & numbering proposal for Phase 2C at 
Parkside, Belmayne,  Dublin 13. The development is indicated on the attached 
drawing SM-2018-0043 

Parkside Avenue was named in Phase 1 of the development in 2015.  
Parkside Row was named in Phase 2B of the development in 2016.  
 
The developer is proposing “Parkside Grove”, “Parkside Lane”, and “Parkside 
Gardens” as suitable and available names for the new streets in this phase. .  
 
The Heritage Officer has given approval for the use of “Parkside Grove”, “Parkside 
Lane” and “Parkside Gardens” however he has noted the over use of the name 
Parkside as a place name within this development. The developer has been advised 
to submit a new placename for future phases of development.  
 
The name and numbers 37-44 Parkside Avenue/37-44 Ascaill Thaobh na Páirce, 
2-18 Parkside Row/ 2-18 Rae Thaobh na Páirce, 1-7 Parkside Grove/1-7 Garrán 
Thaobh na Páirce, 1-5 Parkside Lane/1-5  Lána Thaobh na Páirce, 1-59 Parkside 
Gardens/ 1-59 Gairdíní Thaobh na Páirce are considered suitable and are 
recommended for adoption.  
 

Dave Dinnigan 

___________________ 

Executive Manager. 

Page 69





P
age 71





NthCntrlFeb18AreaAgendaFinal

North Central Feb 

18 Area Agenda 

19/02/18 (TAG Date: 

30/01/18)
Item TAMS 

Ref

Sharepoint 

Ref

Request Road Post-

Code

Topic request_description Request by Date Rec'd TAG Result TAG Comments sec

1 7000234 Stop 

Sign

CLANMAURICE 

ROAD (NC)

Dublin 5 Stop Sign at junction Clanboy Rd Minister 07/11/2017 12:46 Not 

Recommended

Clanboy Road ends at a T junction with Clanmaurice 

Road. Under the road traffic act, traffic on a road 

ending at a T junction must give way to traffic from 

either direction on the other road. A stop/yield sign is 

not necessary where normal rules of the road apply, 

moreover such signs are only provided on 

approaches to major junctions, otherwise this would 

lead to a proliferation of signs throughout residential 

estates. Therefore this request is not recommended.

0

2 7000387 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

GREENDALE 

ROAD (NC)

Dublin 5 Double Yellow 

Lines

for yellow lines 

(single/double) on one side 

of the road near the shops.

TD 14/11/2017 15:39 Not 

Recommended

At over 8m wide the carriageway can accommodate 

parking on either side of the road without interfering 

with traffic flow

0

3 7000501 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

WINDSOR 

AVENUE (NC)

Dublin 3 Double Yellow 

Lines (Extend)

St Mary's National School 

are looking for a review of 

the current double yellow 

lines to see if they are 

adequate. 

Member of 

the Public

21/11/2017 12:57 Not 

Recommended

Double yellow lines have been provided at the most 

appropriate locations adjacent to the school entrance 

on Windsor Ave.These include restrictions on either 

side of the lane itself and on the southern side of the 

 entrance on the western side of the carriageway.

On the eastern side of Windsor Ave Double yellow 

lines have been provided opposite the entrance lane 

 fronting nos. 8 to 10 Windsor Ave.

Restrictions on the west side of the carriageway north 

of the entrance lane are not necessary because 

parked vehicles do not interfere with traffic exiting the 

lane as it is a one way street. Traffic exiting the lane 

can only turn right. Therefore further parking 

restrictions are not recommended.

0

4 7001342 School MCAULEY 

AVENUE (NC)

Dublin 5 School Warden School Warden / Dishing 

on kerb at Scoil Neasin 

Internal 22/01/2018 12:52 Recommended It is recommended that a school warden be provided 

at the pedestrian entrance to Scoil Neasin. To 

facilitate the School Warden it is also recommended 

that the existing grassed margin be paved over from 

a point 6m west of the existing speed ramp for a 

distance of 2m to facillitate a school warden crossing 

point. An M121 School Warden Crossing Patrol Point 

(yellow box) should be provided centered on the new 

paved area.

0

5 90046151 SP_31329 Yellow 

Box

MALAHIDE ROAD 

(NC)

Dublin 3 Yellow Box 

(Extend)

roundabout that connects 

Malahide Rd to 

Donaghmede Road R139

Member of 

the Public

13/05/2016 12:45 Not 

Recommended

The existing yellow box on the roundabout at the exit 

from Templeview Estate extends across both inner 

and outer traffic lanes. When observed correctly this 

measure is adequate to maintain traffic flow and 

 prevent blocking access to the roundabout.  

Therefore extending the box is not recommended.

0

Page 1 of 3

P
age 73



NthCntrlFeb18AreaAgendaFinal

6 90051319 SP_40222 Children 

Crossing

CASTLE GROVE 

(NC)

Dublin 3 Children 

Crossing Sign

at entrances to Castle 

Grove

Member of 

the Public

12/09/2017 12:39 Not 

Recommended

With regard to “"children crossing” signs (W142) 

Signs are generally  only  provided at the entrances 

to housing estates from main traffic routes, and roads 

adjacent to large public open spaces where children 

 play.

These signs are not normally erected on main roads, 

 traffic calmed roads or cul de sacs. 

As Castle Grove does not meet the criteria,Children 

crossing signs are not recommended.

0

7 90051643 SP_40553 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

THORNVILLE 

ROAD (NC)

Dublin 5 Double Yellow 

Lines

at the entrance to the cul-

de-sac on Thornville Road 

(No. 13-47a) 

Councillor 03/10/2017 00:00 Recommended Following investigation it is recommended that 

double yellow lines be provided on either side of the 

entrance to the Cul de sac on Thornville Road for a 

distance of 15m. This measure is to facillitate access 

and visibility and also to maintain clearance at the 

footpath dishings.

0

8 90051708 SP_40622 Children 

Crossing

CASTILLA PARK 

(NC)

Dublin 3 Children 

Crossing Sign

Entrance just off Vernon 

avenue

Member of 

the Public

04/10/2017 00:00 Not 

Recommended

As“"children crossing” signs (W142) generally  are 

erected only at the entrances to roads of a primarily 

residential character with continuous frontage. Signs 

are only  provided at the entrances to housing 

estates from main traffic routes, and roads adjacent 

 to large public open spaces where children play.

These signs are not normally erected on main roads, 

 traffic calmed roads or cul de sacs. 

As Castilla park is a cul de sac with no large public 

open space a "children crossing"sign is not 

recommended.

0

9 90051824 SP_40738 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

WOODBINE PARK 

(NC)

Dublin 5 Double Yellow 

Lines (Extend)

on the road Member of 

the Public

10/10/2017 00:00 Recommended Following investigation it is recommended that 

double yellow lines be provided for 15m on either 

side of the entrance to Woodbine Park in order to 

improve visibility and maintain access to the footpath.   

STAT:15m dyls centered on either side of the 

junction of Woodbine Park and Raheny Road.

0

10 90051888 SP_40802 Double 

Yellow 

Lines

CROMCASTLE 

GREEN (NC)

Dublin 5 Double Yellow 

Lines

outside school Member of 

the Public

12/10/2017 00:00 Not 

Recommended

Parking restrictions by way of "school keep clear" 

markings have been provided where appropriate  at 

the entrances to Scoil Fhursa at Kilbarron Park and 

Cromcastle Green. Additional restrictions are not 

recommended as the Traffic Dept. is of the opinion 

that the provision of additional restrictions such as  

double yellow lines  or set down parking areas will 

not alleviate the problem of illegal or otherwise 

parking by parents. In general, there is a disregard 

for double yellow lines by parents. Where restrictions 

are provided and observed parking is usually shifted 

further away to locations that impinge further on local 

 residents living near schools.

In the event that parking restrictions are ignored by 

parents, it is not feasible to provide enforcement at 

schools in Dublin. The Gardai or Dublin City Council’s 

parking enforcement contractor do not have the 

resources to patrol all schools.

0

Page 2 of 3

P
age 74



NthCntrlFeb18AreaAgendaFinal

11 90051945 SP_40859 Children 

Crossing

GRANGEMORE 

RISE (NC)

Dublin 13 Children 

Crossing Sign

For entrance to 

Grangemore Rise

Member of 

the Public

18/10/2017 00:00 Not 

Recommended

 Grangemore Road is a short cul de sac,The Traffic 

Advisory Group have reported that ‘Children Children’ 

signs are not recommended on traffic calmed roads 

or cul de sac's, in accordance with the City Council’s 

 criteria for the provision of such signage.  

Therefore "a Children Crossing" Sign is not 

recommended.Signs are normally only  provided at 

the entrances to housing estates from main traffic 

routes, and a W142 children crossing sign has been 

provided at the entrance to the estate at the junction 

 of Grange Road/Grangemore Road.

0

12 90052022 SP_40936 Yellow 

Box

SAINT ASSAM'S 

ROAD WEST (NC)

Dublin 5 Yellow Box 

(Extend)

outside library on the 

Howth road to aid exit from 

St.Assam's Road West

Councillor 20/10/2017 00:00 Recommended The existing yellow box on the inbound carriageway 

is to be extended 5m eastwards to facillitate egress 

from St.Assam's Road West.

1

Page 3 of 3

P
age 75




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting held on  15th January 2018
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 24th January 2018
	3 Questions to the Area Manager
	4a Report on Grass Cutting contract and Tree cutting programme
	Report on Grass cutting contract and tree care programe NCA (2)
	Supplemental Report on Grass Manitenance NCA

	4b Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership
	4c Roads Maintenance Works Programme 2018
	4d Roads and Traffic Works Programme 2018
	4e Parks Works Programme 2018
	4f Housing Supply and Delivery Report
	4g Community Grants 2018
	4h Naming & Numbering Proposal , Phase 2C Parkside, Belmayne, Dublin 13
	SM-2018-0043

	6a Minutes of TAG Meeting held on 18th February 2018



